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          1                      P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S

          2             THE DEPUTY CLERK:  CIVIL ACTION 98-1232, UNITED

          3   STATES VERSUS MICROSOFT CORPORATION, AND 98-1233, STATE OF

          4   NEW YORK, ET AL. VERSUS MICROSOFT CORPORATION.

          5             PHILLIP MALONE, STEPHEN HOUCK AND DAVID BOIES FOR

          6   THE PLAINTIFFS.

          7             JOHN WARDEN, STEVEN HOLLEY, RICHARD UROWSKY AND

          8   WILLIAM NEUKOM FOR THE DEFENDANTS.

          9             THE COURT:  GOOD MORNING TO YOU, MR. MALONE.

         10             MR. MALONE:  GOOD MORNING, YOUR HONOR.

         11             THE COURT:  AND TO YOU, MR. ENGSTROM.

         12             I REMIND YOU THAT YOU'RE STILL UNDER OATH, SIR

         13             THE WITNESS:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

         14             (ERIC ENGSTROM, DEFENDANT'S WITNESS, PREVIOUSLY

         15   SWORN.)

         16                  CROSS-EXAMINATION (CONTINUED)

         17   BY MR. MALONE:

         18   Q.  GOOD MORNING, MR. ENGSTROM.

         19   A.  GOOD MORNING, MR. MALONE.

         20   Q.  I WOULD LIKE TO TURN THIS MORNING TO THE PORTION OF YOUR

         21   TESTIMONY IN WHICH WHAT YOU DISCUSS WHAT YOU CALL THE

         22   INCOMPATIBILITIES BETWEEN APPLE'S "QUICKTIME" AND WINDOWS

         23   THAT CAUSE QUICKTIME NOT TO OPERATE PROPERLY.  DO YOU KNOW

         24   WHAT PORTION OF YOUR TESTIMONY --

         25   A.  I BELIEVE IT'S UNDER INTEROPERABILITY ISSUES.
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          1   Q.  OKAY.

          2   A.  DID YOU HAVE A PARTICULAR PARAGRAPH OR PAGE IN MIND?

          3   Q.  NOT RIGHT NOW.

          4   A.  OKAY.

          5   Q.  WE MAY COME TO SOME AS WE GO ALONG, BUT LET ME START

          6   GENERALLY.

          7             IT'S TRUE, ISN'T IT, THAT THE SPECIFIC PROBLEMS

          8   THAT APPLE WAS HAVING THAT YOU ADDRESS IN YOUR TESTIMONY

          9   WERE FIRST BROUGHT TO MICROSOFT'S ATTENTION IN JULY OR SO OF

         10   1998?

         11   A.  IF THE SPECIFIC PROBLEMS YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT IN MY --

         12   THAT WE CORRECTED WITH THE PATCH TO THEIR INSTALLATION, THEN

         13   I BELIEVE THAT DATE IS CORRECT.

         14             DR. TEVANIAN DID SEND A PIECE OF MAIL TO MR. GATES

         15   SOMETIME IN '97, BUT AGAIN, IT WAS VERY VAGUE.  AND WE

         16   ACTUALLY TOOK NO ACTION FOR THAT.  IT JUST GOT FIXED.

         17   Q.  OKAY.  I'LL COME BACK TO THE '97 EPISODE IN A MINUTE.

         18   RIGHT NOW, I'M FOCUSED ON 1998 TAKEOVER -- FILE TAKEOVER

         19   PROBLEMS THAT APPLE IDENTIFIED.

         20             NOW, APPLE SENT -- PROVIDED MICROSOFT SOME

         21   INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROBLEMS THAT THEY WERE HAVING, AND

         22   THEN MICROSOFT ENDEAVORED TO UNDERSTAND WHAT THE PROBLEMS

         23   WERE; IS THAT CORRECT?

         24   A.  APPLE PROVIDED US WITH INSUFFICIENT DATA TO REPLICATE

         25   THE PROBLEM.  WHEN THEY ORIGINALLY PROVIDED THE DATA TO
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          1   US -- ACTUALLY I DON'T THINK THAT WAS JUNE BECAUSE WE

          2   PROVIDED THEM WITH A BETA IN JUNE, NOW THAT I REMEMBER,

          3   WHERE WE ACTUALLY SENT THEM A COPY AND SAID, I BELIEVE THIS

          4   FIXES THE ISSUES YOU RAISED.

          5             BUT, AGAIN WITHOUT THE CASES THAT SAY, "GO TO THIS

          6   URL OR GO TO THIS FILE; THIS IS THE WAY IT BEHAVES," IT'S

          7   VERY DIFFICULT FOR US TO FIND WITHOUT A SIGNIFICANT

          8   INVESTMENT.

          9   Q.  LET ME ASK THAT YOU BE SHOWN GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 274,

         10   WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.  AND WHILE YOU'RE LOOKING AT

         11   THIS, FOR THE RECORD, THIS IS A SERIES OF E-MAIL MESSAGES

         12   BETWEEN APPLE PERSONNEL AND MICROSOFT PERSONNEL FROM LATE

         13   JULY AND THEN EARLY AUGUST OF 1998 ON WHICH YOU ARE COPIED;

         14   IS THAT CORRECT?

         15   A.  YES.  DO YOU MIND IF I FINISH READING THIS?

         16   Q.  TAKE AS MUCH TIME AS YOU NEED.  JUST LET ME KNOW WHEN

         17   YOU'RE READY TO --

         18   A.  THE PRINT IS JUST SMALL AND I LOST MY GLASSES, SO HOLD

         19   ON A SECOND.

         20             OKAY.

         21   Q.  THE BOTTOM E-MAIL ON THE FIRST PAGE WHICH CONTINUES THEN

         22   ON TO THE SECOND PAGE FROM MR. PIERRY AT MICROSOFT TO -- I'M

         23   SORRY -- FROM MR. SCHAAF AT APPLE TO MR. PIERRY AT

         24   MICROSOFT AND COPIED TO YOU BEGINS BY SAYING --

         25   A.  EXCUSE ME JUST A MINUTE.  YOU ARE AWARE THAT THE LAST
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          1   PIECE OF E-MAIL HERE CONTAINS COMMENTS BY MR. PIERRY AND BY

          2   MR. SCHAAF?

          3   Q.  YES.

          4   A.  I CAN'T TELL FROM THIS WHICH ONES ARE WHICH.

          5   Q.  RIGHT.  AND HE, IN FACT, SOMEWHERE IN HERE SAYS --

          6   A.  DO YOU HAVE A VERSION --

          7   Q.  HERE IS HIS ANSWER IN BLUE; DO YOU SEE THAT?

          8   A.  WELL, YES, BUT --

          9   Q.  AND, OF COURSE, IT'S BLACK AND WHITE.

         10   A.  THIS IS BLACK AND WHITE.

         11   Q.  I WILL ASK YOU ABOUT IT.  IF IT BECOMES NECESSARY TO

         12   TALK ABOUT ANY OF THOSE PORTIONS, I WILL TRY TO IDENTIFY FOR

         13   YOU WHICH ONES ARE WHICH.

         14   A.  OKAY.  OKAY.

         15   Q.  AND WE WILL SEE IF WE UNDERSTAND THAT.

         16             LET ME BEGIN WITH THE TEXT RIGHT AT THE BOTTOM OF

         17   PAGE 1.  NOW, THIS IS TEXT -- YOU CAN TELL FROM THE

         18   CONTEXT -- IT WAS WRITTEN BY MR. SCHAAF AT APPLE, CORRECT?

         19   A.  WHICH PART AT THE BOTTOM?

         20   Q.  THAT BEGINS "WHEN YOU GUYS VISITED US SEVERAL WEEKS

         21   AGO."

         22   A.  YES.  YES.

         23   Q.  AND HE SAYS, "WHEN YOU GUYS VISITED US SEVERAL WEEKS

         24   AGO, YOU INDICATED THAT YOU THOUGHT YOU HAD FIXES FOR THE

         25   PROBLEMS WE WERE EXPERIENCING WITH QUICKTIME AND YOUR NEW
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          1   MEDIA PLAYER.  WE TESTED THE REVISED VERSION YOU SENT

          2   AGAINST QUICKTIME.  UNFORTUNATELY, IT DID NOT BEHAVE ANY

          3   DIFFERENTLY.  WE WANTED TO GET BACK TO YOU TO TRY TO MAKE

          4   SOME PROGRESS ON THIS.  IT'S A BIG ISSUE FOR APPLE."

          5             DO YOU SEE THAT?

          6   A.  YES.

          7   Q.  AND WHEN HE IS REFERRING TO THE REVISED VERSION THAT

          8   MICROSOFT SENT, WAS THAT AN IMPROVED OR A REVISED VERSION OF

          9   THE WINDOWS MEDIA PLAYER?

         10   A.  YES, IT WAS.  WE SENT IT ON THE EVENING OF JUNE 15TH.

         11   THE ONLY REASON I REMEMBER THAT PARTICULAR DATE IS WE HAD

         12   MET WITH APPLE THAT MORNING AND THEY ASKED FOR A COPY TO

         13   TEST, SO WE SENT ONE TO THEM.

         14   Q.  DID MICROSOFT MAKE ANY EFFORT, BEFORE SENDING THIS

         15   VERSION TO APPLE, TO DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT THE PROBLEMS

         16   THEY HAD REPORTED TO YOU WERE FIXED IN THE NEW VERSION?

         17   A.  YES.  IN FACT, THE WAY WE GOT THE BUG REPORT -- THAT'S

         18   WHY I CLARIFIED EARLIER THAT GIVEN THE SKETCHY NATURE OF THE

         19   BUG REPORT WE RECEIVED, WE DID THE BEST WE COULD.

         20             WE ASSUMED FROM THE DATA WE HAD THAT IT WAS A FILE

         21   EXTENSION PROBLEM.  WE TESTED AGAINST THE FILE EXTENSIONS IN

         22   THE SHELL.  WE FOUND TWO BUGS IN OUR SOFTWARE.  WE FIXED

         23   THOSE TWO BUGS.  WE BROUGHT A SPREADSHEET DOWN TO PRESENT IT

         24   TO THE JUNE 15TH MEETING, AND WE SENT THEM A BETA.  AND WE

         25   SAID WE THINK THIS IS IT, AS NEAR AS WE CAN TELL FROM THE
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          1   DATA YOU PROVIDED US.

          2   Q.  NOW, WHEN APPLE GOT BACK TO YOU IN THIS E-MAIL, THEY

          3   REPORTED THAT, IN FACT, THE PROBLEMS WERE NOT FIXED,

          4   CORRECT?

          5   A.  THAT'S TRUE.  ON THE 21ST OF JULY, WHICH WAS -- HELP ME

          6   WITH THE MATH, BUT I THINK FIVE WEEKS AFTER THAT, WE'D ALSO

          7   FOLLOWED UP WITH THEM AFTER THE JUNE 15TH BETA COPY WE SENT

          8   THEM, AND SAID, "LOOK, WE'RE ABOUT TO SHIP THE WINDOWS MEDIA

          9   PLAYER.  PLEASE TELL US IF THIS DOESN'T FIX YOUR PROBLEM."

         10   Q.  AT ANY TIME BETWEEN THE TIME YOU GAVE THEM THE BETA AND

         11   THE TIME OF THE SECOND REPORT, DID YOU ASK THEM FOR ANY

         12   ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT WHAT THE PROBLEM WAS OR WHAT

         13   THE FILE TYPES THAT MIGHT BE CAUSING THE PROBLEMS WERE?

         14   A.  NO.  WE SENT THEM A COPY.  WE ASKED THEM TO TELL US IF

         15   IT WORKED OR NOT.  AND THEN I THINK FOUR OR FIVE DAYS

         16   LATER -- I AM NOT SURE WHICH -- WE FOLLOWED UP AGAIN, AND

         17   SAID, "WOULD YOU PLEASE TELL US IF THIS WORKS OR NOT"?  I

         18   THINK THAT'S ADEQUATE.

         19   Q.  NOW, IN RESPONSE TO MR. SCHAAF'S REPORT THAT THERE ARE

         20   STILL PROBLEMS, MR. PIERRY WRITES BACK TO HIM AT THE TOP

         21   HERE -- I'M SORRY -- HIS MESSAGE, PART OF WHAT MR. PIERRY

         22   SAYS IS REPEATED AT THE TOP HERE.  BUT, IN GENERAL, THE

         23   RESPONSE FROM MICROSOFT WAS THAT APPLE SHOULD USE AN ACTIVEX

         24   CONTROL FOR QUICKTIME AND THAT WOULD MAKE IT OPERATE

         25   PROPERLY; IS THAT ACCURATE?
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          1   A.  YES, THAT'S DEFINITELY WHAT THE MAIL SAYS.  THE CONTEXT

          2   YOU HAVE TO HAVE FOR THIS -- I MEAN, FIRST OFF, WRITING

          3   ACTIVEX CONTROL, IN MY OPINION, IS A COMPLETELY REASONABLE

          4   RESPONSE TO A COMPATIBILITY PROBLEM ON WINDOWS, SINCE

          5   ACTIVEX IS NOT JUST THE EXTENSION MECHANISM FOR OUR BROWSING

          6   SERVICES, BUT THE EXTENSION MECHANISM USED BY WINDOWS AND BY

          7   APPLICATIONS ON WINDOWS.

          8             SO I CAN GO INTO WHY ACTIVEX CONTROL WOULD

          9   ACTUALLY HELP QUICKTIME EXTEND ITS REACH ON THE WINDOWS

         10   PLATFORM, IF YOU'D LIKE, BUT LET'S JUST LEAVE THAT AS A

         11   GIVEN FOR THE MOMENT.

         12             THE SECOND THING YOU HAVE TO UNDERSTAND ABOUT THIS

         13   IS THIS ENABLE PLUG-IN FLAG THAT WE CREATED TO ALLOW

         14   QUICKTIME'S NETSCAPE PLUG-IN TO PLAY AND TAKE PRECEDENCE

         15   OVER THE ACTIVEX CONTROLS.  WE'D ALREADY TOLD THEM ABOUT

         16   THAT.  WE SET IT FOR THEM FOR MOVING QT FILES IN THE IE 3

         17   TIMEFRAME.  WE TOLD THEM ABOUT IT AGAIN IN JANUARY.  THEY

         18   ARE COMING BACK TO US SAYING IT DOESN'T WORK.  WE ASSUMED

         19   THAT THEY WERE USING THAT DATA.

         20             IF THAT'S NOT SUFFICIENT FOR THEM, THEN WE SAID,

         21   "HEY, YOU'VE GOT TO WRITE AN ACTIVEX CONTROL."  AND

         22   THAT'S -- THE CONTEXT YOU HAVE TO HAVE HERE IS THAT PREVIOUS

         23   TO THIS -- YOU KNOW, "YOU NEED TO WRITE AN ACTIVEX CONTROL,"

         24   WE HAD MODIFIED OUR WINDOWS REGISTRY PRECEDENCE ORDER WITH

         25   THIS ENABLE PLUG-IN FLAG, AND COMMUNICATED THAT TO APPLE,
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          1   SPECIFICALLY TO MAKE QUICKTIME WORK IN PREFERENCE OVER OUR

          2   ACTIVEX CONTROL.

          3   Q.  YOU SAID YOU ASSUMED THEY WERE USING THAT DATA.  DID YOU

          4   TEST THE VERSION OF QUICKTIME THEY WERE HAVING PROBLEMS WITH

          5   TO SEE WHETHER, IN FACT, THEY HAD USED THAT DATA AND THAT

          6   HAD ANYTHING TO DO WITH THE PROBLEM?

          7   A.  NO, WE DID NOT, MR. MALONE.  WE RESPONDED TO THE BUG

          8   REPORT WE GOT.  WE TESTED THAT.  FROM THE CONTEXT OF THE

          9   REPORT WE RECEIVED, IT WAS OUR BELIEF THAT IT WAS A SHELL

         10   EXTENSION PROBLEM.  SO WE TESTED THE SHELL EXTENSIONS.  THEY

         11   GAVE US NO TEST CASES.  THEY GAVE US NO DATA THAT WE WERE

         12   CAPABLE OF HANDING OFF TO A TEST TEAM TO ACTUALLY VERIFY THE

         13   PROBLEM.

         14             WE DIDN'T GET ANY DATA LIKE THAT UNTIL

         15   DR. TEVANIAN'S VIDEOTAPE WAS PRESENTED TO THIS -- IN THIS

         16   CASE, AND I DON'T THINK IT'S BEEN ENTERED INTO EVIDENCE OR

         17   ANYTHING, BUT THEY PROVIDED IT TO US.  AND THAT ACTUALLY

         18   GAVE US SOME REAL TEST CASES.

         19   Q.  AT ANY TIME BEFORE THAT, DID MICROSOFT REQUEST FROM

         20   APPLE TEST CASES OR TEST DATA AND SAY, "WE NEED TO KNOW MORE

         21   ABOUT THE PROBLEM SO WE CAN FIX IT"?

         22   A.  NO.  AND THE REASON FOR THAT IS, YOU KNOW, THERE IS A

         23   CERTAIN AMOUNT OF COMMONALITY IN THE WAY SOFTWARE IS BUILT

         24   AT APPLE AND MICROSOFT.  IF YOU GIVE US A BUG REPORT OR I

         25   GIVE A BUG REPORT TO APPLE, I'LL GIVE THEM AN EXACT TEST
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          1   SCENARIO, WHICH, IN THE ONLY BUG WE REPORTED TO THEM, WE

          2   DID.  THIS IS, "GO DO THIS.  UNINSTALL YOUR PRODUCT.  NOTICE

          3   THAT THE FILE EXTENSIONS ARE NOT REPLACED."

          4   Q.  LET ME JUST BE SURE THAT WE'RE CLEAR ON ONE THING.  IN

          5   RESPONSE TO APPLE'S REQUEST, AS REFLECTED IN EXHIBIT 274

          6   HERE, THE ONLY THING MICROSOFT TOLD APPLE IT NEEDED TO DO TO

          7   FIX ITS PROBLEM WAS TO WRITE AN ACTIVEX CONTROL; IS THAT

          8   CORRECT?

          9   A.  IN RESPONSE TO THIS MAIL ON JULY 21ST?

         10   Q.  CORRECT.

         11   A.  YES.  WE HAD PREVIOUSLY TOLD THEM ABOUT THE ENABLE

         12   PLUG-IN FLAG.  WE HAD VERIFIED THEY KNEW ABOUT IT.  AND, IN

         13   FACT, IT'S VERY CLEAR THEY KNEW ABOUT IT BECAUSE THEY WERE

         14   USING IT.

         15   Q.  AND WHEN YOU SAY YOU HAD TOLD THEM ABOUT THE ENABLE

         16   PLUG-IN FLAG, THAT WAS LONG BEFORE THIS PROBLEM HAD ARISEN,

         17   CORRECT?  YOU SAID IT WAS IN JANUARY.

         18   A.  YES, THAT'S TRUE.  AND REMEMBER, WE CREATED THE ENABLE

         19   PLUG-IN FLAG TO ALLOW QUICKTIME TO WORK WITHOUT RUNNING AN

         20   ACTIVEX CONTROL.  THAT WAS THE PURPOSE OF THE FLAG.

         21   Q.  AFTER LEARNING ABOUT APPLE'S PROBLEM IN JUNE OR JULY OR

         22   WHATEVER, YOU DIDN'T TELL THEM AGAIN IN ANY OF THE

         23   CORRESPONDENCE YOU HAD WITH THEM ABOUT THE ENABLE PLUG-IN

         24   FLAG, DID YOU?  YOU SIMPLY SAID, WRITE AN ACTIVEX CONTROL?

         25   A.  NO, MR. MALONE, I DIDN'T.  I THINK IT'S IMPORTANT TO
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          1   APPLY A LITTLE CONTEXT HERE AS WELL.

          2             WHEN WE RECEIVED THE MAIL FROM TIM SCHAAF ON JULY

          3   21ST, I WAS AT SIG GRAPH -- IT'S A COMPUTER SHOW --

          4   LAUNCHING A DIFFERENT PRODUCT.  I WAS CALLED AWAY FROM THAT

          5   SHOW TO MEET WITH SOME P.R. PEOPLE OVER THE PHONE, BECAUSE

          6   THERE WAS ARTICLE APPEARING IN THE WALL STREET JOURNAL

          7   REFERENCING APPLE EXECUTIVES AND BASICALLY SAYING THAT WE

          8   HAD -- WELL, THE ARTICLE TOTALLY MISCHARACTERIZES THE

          9   MEETINGS WE HAD WITH APPLE AND IT CLAIMS THAT WE WERE DOING

         10   THINGS THAT WERE NOT GOOD FOR THEIR PLUG-IN.

         11             THE OTHER PIECE OF DATA I WAS GIVEN ON THE 21ST BY

         12   OUR P.R. PEOPLE IS THAT THEY BELIEVED ROB GLASER WAS GOING

         13   TO GO TO SENATOR ORRIN HATCH'S COMMITTEE AND ACCUSE US OF

         14   BREAKING HIS PLAYER.

         15             SO I CALLED CHRISTIANO AND SAID, "PLEASE WAIT

         16   UNTIL I RETURN TO RESPOND TO MR. SCHAAF."  THAT'S WHY THIS

         17   ONE WEEK DIFFERENCE BETWEEN WHEN TIM FIRST SENDS A PIECE OF

         18   MAIL AND HE SENDS ANOTHER PIECE OF MAIL SAYING, "HI, GUYS.

         19   MAYBE YOU MISSED THIS."  DURING THAT PERIOD OF TIME AND IN

         20   THE WEEKS COMING UP TO OUR ACTUAL RESPONSE, ROB GLASER DID,

         21   IN FACT, GO TO SENATOR ORRIN HATCH'S COMMITTEE AND

         22   DEMONSTRATE THAT REALNETWORKS' PLAYER WAS BROKEN AND ACCUSED

         23   US OF BREAKING IT.

         24             SUBSEQUENTLY, WE DEMONSTRATED THAT THE PLAYER THAT

         25   HE WAS DEMONSTRATING AS BROKEN WAS BROKEN BY HIS OWN RETAIL
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          1   SOFTWARE IN EXACTLY THE SAME SCENARIO, WHICH, WE FELT, MADE

          2   IT CLEAR THAT WE WERE NOT AT FAULT.

          3             BUT YOU HAVE TO UNDERSTAND MY MINDSET AT THE

          4   MOMENT.  THIS IS NOT A GOOD DAY FOR ME AT MICROSOFT.  YOU

          5   KNOW, THERE IS ARTICLE IN THE WALL STREET JOURNAL ACCUSING

          6   ME OF DOING ALL KINDS OF BAD THINGS.  THERE'S AN ARTICLE,

          7   YOU KNOW, SUBSEQUENT TO THIS, FOUR DAYS OR FIVE DAYS LATER,

          8   ACCUSING ME OF SABOTAGING REALNETWORKS' PLAYER.

          9             I HAD DINNER WITH ROB GLASER, YOU KNOW, SOMETIME

         10   IN THE LAST MONTH.  I AM FRIENDS WITH HIS WIFE.  I COULDN'T

         11   BELIEVE THIS.  YOU KNOW, AND IN ANY CASE, WE WERE NOT

         12   BEING, YOU KNOW -- HOW SHALL I PUT IT -- TERRIBLY CAREFUL

         13   ABOUT REMINDING THEM OF ALL THE THINGS WE HAD DONE FOR THEM

         14   IN THE PAST.  WE TOLD THEM, "HEY, ALL YOUR PROBLEMS WILL GO

         15   IF YOU DO AN ACTIVEX CONTROL."  MIND YOU, THIS WOULD ALSO

         16   ALLOW QUICKTIME TO PARTICIPATE IN ALL THE OFFICE

         17   APPLICATIONS AS WELL -- AS WELL AS ALL THE WINDOWS APPS.  I

         18   MEAN, EVERYTHING IN WINDOWS USES AN ACTIVEX CONTROL.

         19   Q.  MR. ENGSTROM, I AM GOING TO TRY VERY HARD TODAY TO MOVE

         20   THINGS ALONG QUICKLY AND ASK YOU QUESTIONS THAT ARE AS

         21   CONCISE AS I CAN.  AND TO THE EXTENT YOU CAN, AS MUCH AS YOU

         22   NEED TO EXPLAIN YOUR TESTIMONY, IF YOU CAN FOCUS ON MY

         23   QUESTION AND TRY TO ANSWER JUST WHAT I'M ASKING, AGAIN,

         24   EXPLAINING WHAT YOU BELIEVE YOU NEED TO, THAT WILL HELP US

         25   MOVE ALONG.
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          1             THE COURT:  I AM SYMPATHETIC WITH HIS BAD DAY,

          2   THOUGH.

          3             THE WITNESS:  IT WAS ACTUALLY A BAD MONTH.

          4   BY MR. MALONE:

          5   Q.  LET ME JUST BE SURE.  I THINK AT THE END OF THAT ANSWER

          6   YOU SAID THAT WHAT YOU TOLD THEM WAS THAT AN ACTIVEX CONTROL

          7   WOULD FIX EVERYTHING; IS THAT CORRECT?

          8   A.  YES, BECAUSE WE HAD ALREADY PUT THE ENABLE PLUG-IN FLAG

          9   IN FOR THEM AND TOLD THEM ABOUT IT.  AND AT SOME POINT YOU

         10   GO, "GEE, IF THESE THINGS AREN'T WORKING FOR YOU, WE KNOW

         11   THIS ACTIVEX CONTROL THING WORKS."

         12             BEAR IN MIND ALSO THAT FOR NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR, WE

         13   BUILD A NETSCAPE PLUG-IN TO WORK IN THAT BECAUSE YOU CAN'T

         14   USE AN ACTIVEX CONTROL IN NETSCAPE.  JUST SO YOU UNDERSTAND,

         15   WE BUILD BOTH.

         16   Q.  NOW, WHILE WE'RE ON THE SUBJECT OF ACTIVEX CONTROLS,

         17   ACTIVEX CONTROLS WORK ONLY ON WINDOWS, CORRECT, SIR?

         18   A.  YES, I BELIEVE THAT'S TRUE.

         19   Q.  AND IF APPLE HAD USED -- HAD WRITTEN AN ACTIVEX CONTROL,

         20   AS YOU HAD SUGGESTED TO FIX THIS PROBLEM, THEY WOULD HAVE

         21   HAD TO WRITE A NEW INTERFACE FOR THEIR QUICKTIME PLAYER,

         22   CORRECT?

         23   A.  WELL, THAT STATEMENT IS, IN THE ENGINEERING SENSE,

         24   ABSOLUTELY CORRECT.  THE THING THAT YOU HAVE TO APPRECIATE

         25   ABOUT TIM SCHAAF'S MAIL HERE IS HE SAYS -- AND I THINK IT'S
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          1   IN HERE -- "SHORT OF REWRITING EVERYTHING AS AN ACTIVEX

          2   CONTROL" -- THAT IS -- THAT'S A STATEMENT THAT IS JUST NOT

          3   CORRECT.  ALL YOU NEEDED TO DO WAS BUILD A SMALL PIECE OF

          4   CODE THAT PRESENTED THE ACTIVEX INTERFACE AND SAT ON TOP OF

          5   QUICKTIME.  YOU WOULD NEVER WRITE QUICKTIME AS AN ACTIVEX

          6   CONTROL.

          7             WE DON'T WRITE OUR PLAYER AS AN -- YOU KNOW, THE

          8   ENTIRE THING AS AN ACTIVEX CONTROL.  IN FACT, THE WINDOWS

          9   MEDIA PLAYER IS COMPOSED OF SEVERAL ACTIVEX CONTROLS,

         10   BECAUSE WE WANT PEOPLE TO BE ABLE TO PICK AND CHOOSE THE

         11   DIFFERENT UI COMPONENTS THEY USE.

         12             SO WHAT HE HAD TO DO -- APPLE HAD TO DO WAS CREATE

         13   A VERY SMALL PIECE OF CODE CALLED AN ACTIVEX CONTROL THAT

         14   INTERFACED QUICKTIME WITH THE REST OF WINDOWS.

         15             THIS IS NOT DIFFICULT.  IT'S WELL-DOCUMENTED.

         16   LITERALLY THOUSANDS OF PEOPLE HAVE DONE THIS.  THERE'S

         17   AUTOMATIC TOOLS FOR CREATING THE BASIC COMPONENTS OF THIS

         18   BUILT INTO OUR VISUAL STUDIO PRODUCTS.  IT'S THE FUNDAMENTAL

         19   LEGO BLOCKS OF WINDOWS.

         20   Q.  AND IT'S TRUE, ISN'T IT, THAT THE VERSION OF QUICKTIME

         21   THAT APPLE WROTE WITH THE ACTIVEX CONTROL WOULD ONLY WORK ON

         22   WINDOWS, CORRECT?

         23   A.  NO, IT IS NOT TRUE.  THE VERSION OF QUICKTIME THAT THEY

         24   HAD WOULD BE IDENTICAL TO THE VERSION OF QUICKTIME THEY

         25   CURRENTLY SHIPPED.  THEY WOULD HAVE TO WRITE A VERY SMALL
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          1   PIECE OF CODE THAT SAT ON TOP OF THAT VERSION OF QUICKTIME

          2   AND PLUGGED IT IN TO INTERNET EXPLORER AND WINDOWS

          3   APPLICATIONS.

          4             TO GIVE YOU A CLEAR EXAMPLE OF THIS, WE BUILT AN

          5   ACTIVEX CONTROL FOR QUICKTIME VERSION 2.  I MEAN, IT WAS OUR

          6   ACTIVEX CONTROL, BUT IT CALLED INTO QUICKTIME VERSION 2 AND

          7   PLAYED BACK QUICKTIME MOVIES USING QUICKTIME CODECS IN

          8   OFFICE AND IN OTHER APPLICATIONS THAT USE ACTIVEX CONTROLS.

          9   WE DON'T HAVE ANY SOURCE CODE TO QUICKTIME.  SO CLEARLY IT'S

         10   NOT A VERSION OF QUICKTIME.  I REALLY DON'T KNOW HOW TO MAKE

         11   IT ANY CLEARER TO YOU.

         12   Q.  LET ME ASK THAT YOU BE SHOWN GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 911,

         13   WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.  AND TO SPEED THINGS UP, I AM

         14   GOING TO FOCUS JUST ON THE FIRST PAGE OF THIS EXHIBIT.  FEEL

         15   FREE TO LOOK QUICKLY AT THE REST IF YOU NEED TO, ALTHOUGH

         16   SOME OF IT REPEATS THE E-MAIL THAT'S IN EXHIBIT 274.

         17             MY QUESTIONS WILL BE ONLY ABOUT THE FIRST PAGE.

         18   A.  OKAY.

         19   Q.  IN RESPONSE TO AN INQUIRY FROM MR. ALLCHIN AT THE BOTTOM

         20   OF THE PAGE, MR. PIERRY WRITES THE E-MAIL THAT'S IN THE

         21   MIDDLE OF EXHIBIT 911, CORRECT?

         22   A.  IN MIDDLE OF THE FIRST PAGE?

         23   Q.  YES.

         24   A.  YES.

         25   Q.  AND HE SAYS THAT MICROSOFT IS INVESTIGATING HOW APPLE
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          1   CAN FIX THE PROBLEM, CORRECT?

          2   A.  YES.

          3   Q.  AND HE SAYS THAT RIGHT NOW HIS THINKING IS THAT THEY

          4   MUST WRITE AN ACTIVEX CONTROL; IS THAT RIGHT?

          5   A.  YES.

          6   Q.  NOW, ANYWHERE IN HERE WHERE MR. PIERRY REPORTS THAT

          7   MICROSOFT IS INVESTIGATING HOW TO FIX THIS PROBLEM, DOES HE

          8   HE REFER TO THE ENABLE PLUG FLAG THAT YOU DESCRIBED EARLIER

          9   THAT WAS AN ISSUE?

         10   A.  IT'S ACTUALLY THE ENABLE PLUG-IN FLAG, BUT, NO, HE

         11   DOESN'T.  AND YOU HAVE TO UNDERSTAND WE DIDN'T HAVE ANY TEST

         12   CASES.  SO THE WAY WE LOOK AT THIS IS, GEE, WE CAN PLAY BACK

         13   A CERTAIN SET OF FILES THIS WAY.

         14             WHAT THEY'RE TELLING US IS THEY DON'T LIKE THE

         15   RESULTS.  THAT'S IT.  THAT'S THE AMOUNT OF COMMUNICATION.

         16             THERE'S NO TEST CASE, "GEE, IT DOESN'T WORK IN

         17   THIS PARTICULAR CASE, IN THIS PARTICULAR WAY; WE DON'T LIKE

         18   THE RESULTS."  OKAY.  IF YOU WRITE AN ACTIVEX CONTROL, THE

         19   RESULTS WILL BE BETTER.  AND THAT IS COMPLETELY TRUE.

         20   Q.  AGAIN, YOU NEVER ASKED -- FROM THE TIME THE EPISODE WAS

         21   REPORTED UNTIL YOU RECEIVED MR. TEVANIAN'S VIDEOTAPE,

         22   MICROSOFT NEVER ASKED APPLE FOR TEST CASES OR ADDITIONAL

         23   INFORMATION ABOUT WHAT WAS NOT WORKING?

         24   A.  SO LET'S BE CLEAR AGAIN ON THE TIMING, MR. MALONE, AND

         25   I'M SORRY TO BE REPETITIVE HERE, BUT I THINK IT'S IMPORTANT.
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          1   JUNE 15TH WE SEND THEM A BETA, OKAY.  WE DIDN'T ASK THEM TO

          2   SIGN AN NDA.  WE DIDN'T DO ANYTHING WE WOULD NORMALLY DO TO

          3   GIVE THEM A BETA.  WE JUST SENT IT TO THEM BECAUSE WE WANTED

          4   IT FIXED.  WE FOLLOW UP FIVE DAYS LATER, "PLEASE TELL US

          5   WHAT'S WRONG BECAUSE WE'RE ABOUT TO SHIP."

          6             AFTER WE'VE SHIPPED AND AFTER I KNOW ABOUT THE

          7   WALL STREET JOURNAL ARTICLE, WE GET A PIECE OF MAIL FROM

          8   MR. SCHAAF SAYING THAT THE PROBLEMS PERSIST.  DURING THE

          9   SUBSEQUENT TWO WEEKS TO THAT, THE WALL STREET JOURNAL

         10   ARTICLE COMES OUT, AND WE SPEND THAT TIME DEALING WITH

         11   REALNETWORKS, WHICH IS SUBSEQUENTLY, YOU KNOW, DISMISSED AS

         12   NOT OUR FAULT, THOUGH PEOPLE DON'T TEND TO REMEMBER THAT.

         13   THEY JUST REMEMBER WE WERE ACCUSED OF IT.

         14             NOW, THAT TAKES US TO THE FIRST WEEK IN AUGUST

         15   WHERE WE ARE ALREADY AWARE THAT THE GOVERNMENT IS

         16   INVESTIGATING US REGARDING OUR DEALINGS WITH APPLE.  THAT'S

         17   WHY YOU'LL SEE NOTICE TO LEGAL COUNSEL ON HERE.  WE KNOW

         18   WHAT HAPPENED IN THOSE MEETINGS.  AND I BELIEVE, YOU KNOW,

         19   IN MY HEART OF HEARTS THAT THEY ARE BEING MISCHARACTERIZED

         20   TO THE GOVERNMENT.  I AM GOING TO BE VERY CAREFUL.

         21             THIS MAIL IS, YOU KNOW -- FIRST OFF, WE HAVEN'T

         22   HAD MUCH TIME, BECAUSE WE'VE SPENT THAT TIME ON THE

         23   REALNETWORKS SOFTWARE -- IS TRYING TO GET A RESPONSE BACK TO

         24   APPLE.  THE DATA THAT THEY HAVE GIVEN US IS NOT PRECISE, SO

         25   WE RESPONDED THE BEST WE COULD.  "BUILD AN ACTIVEX CONTROL."
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          1   THERE IS NOTHING WRONG WITH THIS RESPONSE, MR. MALONE.  HAD

          2   THEY DONE THIS, IT WOULD HAVE WORKED.  THEY MAY NOT LIKE

          3   WHAT THE DOCTOR IS RECOMMENDING, BUT IT'S NOT HARD WORK AND

          4   IT WOULD HAVE FIXED THE PROBLEM.

          5   Q.  MR. ENGSTROM, DO YOU REMEMBER THE QUESTION I ASKED YOU?

          6   A.  YES.

          7   Q.  WHAT WAS IT?

          8   A.  I BELIEVE IT WAS WHETHER OR NOT WE HAD MENTIONED THE

          9   ENABLE PLUG-IN FLAG IN HERE, WHICH I HAD ANSWERED AT

         10   BEGINNING.  NO, THERE WAS NO MENTION OF IT.

         11   Q.  ACTUALLY, THAT WAS MY PREVIOUS QUESTION.  THE QUESTION I

         12   JUST ASKED YOU WAS WHETHER AT ANY TIME AFTER YOU FIRST

         13   LEARNED ABOUT THE PROBLEM THAT WAS BEING DISCUSSED HERE,

         14   UNTIL YOU RECEIVED DR. TEVANIAN'S VIDEOTAPE, DID MICROSOFT

         15   ASK APPLE FOR MORE DETAILS, OR MORE TEST CASES, OR MORE DATA

         16   ABOUT THE PROBLEM?

         17   A.  YOU MEAN FROM AUGUST 5TH?

         18   Q.  FROM JUNE OR JULY WHEN THE PROBLEM WAS FIRST REPORTED.

         19   A.  IN JUNE WE DID ASK FOR MORE DATA.  WE ASKED THEM TO

         20   PROVIDE FEEDBACK A COUPLE OF DAYS AFTER JUNE 15TH.  AND THEY

         21   PROVIDED NONE.  SO, YES, I GUESS THE ANSWER WOULD BE YES, WE

         22   DID ASK.

         23   Q.  WHAT ABOUT FROM AUGUST 5TH FORWARD?

         24   A.  NO.

         25   Q.  NOW, IN YOUR WRITTEN TESTIMONY, YOU DESCRIBE TWO -- WHAT
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          1   YOU PURPORT TO BE TWO APPLE PROGRAMMING ERRORS THAT CAUSED

          2   THE PROBLEMS THAT THEY HAVE, CORRECT?

          3   A.  I BELIEVE THERE'S TWO.

          4   Q.  ONE OF THEM IS -- YOU SAY THAT APPLE ALLEGEDLY FAILED TO

          5   FOLLOW NETSCAPE'S PLUG-IN INSTRUCTIONS, CORRECT, SIR?

          6   A.  YES, THEY DID FAIL TO FOLLOW THOSE INSTRUCTIONS.

          7   Q.  AND YOU ALSO SAY THAT APPLE FAILED TO OVERRIDE INTERNET

          8   EXPLORER'S PREFERENCE FOR ACTIVEX CONTROLS IN THE WINDOWS

          9   REGISTRY?

         10   A.  THEY FAILED TO USE THE ENABLE PLUG-IN FLAG IN ALL CASES,

         11   YES.

         12   Q.  NOW, YOU DIDN'T TELL APPLE ABOUT EITHER OF THOSE

         13   SUPPOSED PROBLEMS OR CAUSES FOR THE PROBLEMS THEY WERE

         14   HAVING BEFORE THIS LITIGATION BEGAN, DID YOU?

         15   A.  WE DIDN'T HAVE THE DATA TO FIND THOSE PROBLEMS PRIOR TO

         16   THIS LITIGATION, SIR, SO, NO, WE DID NOT.  WE DID TELL THEM

         17   IN JANUARY ABOUT THE ENABLE PLUG-IN FLAG.  AND I WOULD

         18   REMIND YOU THAT THE NETSCAPE PLUG-IN DOCUMENTATION ON HOW TO

         19   WRITE A NETSCAPE PLUG-IN IS NOT MINE TO TELL PEOPLE HOW TO

         20   DO.  THAT'S NETSCAPE'S JOB.  IT'S NETSCAPE'S ARCHITECTURE.

         21   Q.  LET ME CONTRAST THIS SITUATION WITH -- AND THE

         22   INFORMATION THAT YOU GAVE TO APPLE AND THE WORK YOU DID FOR

         23   THEM -- WITH THE OTHER ONE THAT YOU IDENTIFY IN YOUR

         24   TESTIMONY, WHICH IS A PROBLEM APPLE WAS HAVING WITH IE

         25   TAKING OVER CERTAIN FILE EXTENSIONS BACK IN AUGUST OF 1997.

                                                                              22

          1             ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH THOSE PROBLEMS?

          2   A.  I AM FAMILIAR WITH THE PIECE OF MAIL THAT I THINK

          3   DR. TEVANIAN SENT, I BELIEVE, TO BILL GATES.  IT MIGHT HAVE

          4   BEEN TO GREG MAFFEI.

          5   Q.  LET ME ASK THAT -- WELL, BEFORE I DO THAT, THAT PIECE OF

          6   MAIL BASICALLY REPORTED THAT APPLE WAS HAVING PROBLEMS WITH

          7   QUICKTIME ON IE 4; IS THAT CORRECT?

          8   A.  I BELIEVE THAT'S WHAT THAT MAIL SAYS, YES.

          9   Q.  AND IN THAT PARTICULAR CASE, MICROSOFT FIXED WHATEVER

         10   THE PROBLEM WAS WITH A .MOV OR .MOV FILE FAIRLY QUICKLY

         11   CORRECT, SIR?

         12   A.  THE PROBLEM WITH THAT, MR. MALONE IS THAT WE HAVE NO

         13   RECORD OF EVER FIXING THE PROBLEM.  WE'VE NEVER BEEN ABLE TO

         14   REPRODUCE THE PROBLEM.  I DON'T REMEMBER GETTING THAT MAIL

         15   AT THE TIME.  NEITHER DOES ANYONE WHO WORKS FOR ME.  IT

         16   SURPRISES ME THAT THAT WAS EVER THE CASE BECAUSE IF YOU LOOK

         17   AT THE ENVIRONMENT FOR INTERNET EXPLORER 3 WITH THE

         18   QUICKTIME 2 PRODUCT, WHICH -- JUST TO BE CLEAR -- WE SET THE

         19   ENABLE PLUG-IN FLAGS FOR THEM FOR THE QUICKTIME 2 PRODUCT.

         20   THAT'S WHAT CHRISTIANO WAS REFERRING TO HERE WHEN HE SAYS WE

         21   WENT OUT OF OUR WAY FOR THEM.

         22             WE SET THAT AGAIN IN IE 4, SO THAT, IF QUICKTIME

         23   ISN'T THERE, WE WILL PLAY BACK THE MOV FILES.  IF THEY ARE

         24   THERE, THEY WILL PLAY BACK THE MOV FILES.  WE TOOK NO ACTION

         25   AS A RESULT OF THAT E-MAIL THAT ANY OF US CAN REMEMBER.
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          1   THERE WAS NO BUG REPORT THAT WOULD BE REASONABLE FOR US TO

          2   ACTUALLY FIX THE BUG.  IT CONTINUED TO WORK BECAUSE, IN OUR

          3   BELIEF, IT ALWAYS HAS WORKED.

          4   Q.  LET ME ASK THAT YOU BE SHOWN GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 265,

          5   WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

          6   A.  OKAY.

          7   Q.  AT THE BOTTOM OF THIS IS AN AUGUST 8, 1997 E-MAIL FROM

          8   MR. TEVANIAN TO BILL GATES, IN PART REPORTING ON A

          9   DIFFICULTY OR A PROBLEM THAT QUICKTIME IS HAVING WITH IE 4,

         10   CORRECT, SIR?

         11   A.  THAT APPEARS TO BE THE CASE, YES.

         12   Q.  AND THE E-MAIL RIGHT ABOVE THAT IS A MESSAGE FROM BILL

         13   GATES TO MR. MARITZ, MR. LUDWIG AND OTHERS IN WHICH HE SAYS,

         14   IN PART, IN THE THIRD LINE, "WHO SHOULD AVIE BE WORKING

         15   WITH?"  CORRECT?

         16   A.  YES.

         17   Q.  SO HIS RESPONSE DEALS WITH RESPONDING TO MR. TEVANIAN,

         18   FIGURING OUT WHAT THE PROBLEM IS; IS THAT RIGHT?

         19   A.  I WOULD BELIEVE THAT'S PROBABLY WHAT HE IS SAYING, YES.

         20   Q.  IN ADDITION TO THAT, MR. GATES ALSO WRITES, "I WANT TO

         21   GET AS MUCH MILEAGE AS POSSIBLE OUT OF OUR BROWSER AND JAVA

         22   RELATIONSHIP HERE.  IN OTHER WORDS, A REAL ADVANTAGE AGAINST

         23   SUN AND NETSCAPE."

         24             AND THEN AFTER THE PART ABOUT WHO AVIE SHOULD BE

         25   WORKING WITH, HE CONTINUES, "DO WE HAVE A CLEAR PLAN ON WHAT
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          1   WE WANT APPLE TO DO TO UNDERMINE SUN?"

          2             DO YOU SEE THAT?

          3   A.  I DO SEE IT, YES.

          4   Q.  WERE THESE GOALS OF MICROSOFT'S AT THE TIME OF THIS

          5   E-MAIL, THAT MR. GATES HAD -- TO YOUR UNDERSTANDING,

          6   MR. GATES HAD IN MIND WHEN HE WAS ASKING, "WHO SHOULD WE

          7   HAVE AVIE WORK WITH TO FIX APPLE'S PROBLEM"?

          8   A.  NO, MR. MALONE.  MR. GATES DOESN'T TALK TO ME VERY

          9   OFTEN, AND CERTAINLY NOT ABOUT STRATEGIC MATTERS.  I MEAN, I

         10   LITERALLY SAW THIS MAIL.  YOU KNOW, PERHAPS IT WAS FORWARDED

         11   TO ME OR NOT.  I DON'T KNOW, BUT I SAW IT FOR THE FIRST TIME

         12   IN PREPARING FOR THIS CASE.

         13             WE DIDN'T DO ANYTHING TO FIX THE BUG.  WE DON'T

         14   HAVE THE BUG.  IN FACT, IN ALL THE REPORTS THAT I PROVIDED

         15   HERE, NO ONE COULD SEE ANY DIFFERENCE BETWEEN IE 3 AND IE 4

         16   AND WINDOWS 98 IN THE BEHAVIOR OF QUICKTIME 2 OR 3, OKAY?

         17   WE COULD NEVER REPLICATE APPLE'S RESULTS ON THAT CHART THAT

         18   DR. TEVANIAN HANDED TO THE COURT AS PART OF HIS TESTIMONY.

         19   I HAVE BEEN OVER THAT AND OVER THAT AND OVER THAT.  WE CAN

         20   NOT GET THOSE RESULTS.

         21   Q.  AND YOU SAY YOU HAVE NO RECORD AND PEOPLE HAVE NO

         22   RECOLLECTION OF FIXING A BUG.  IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?

         23   A.  ABSOLUTELY, THAT'S TRUE.  NO RECOLLECTION OF FIXING THE

         24   BUG.

         25             BY THE WAY, IF THERE HAD BEEN A BUG, IT WAS IN A
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          1   BETA VERSION OF THE SOFTWARE, SO THIS IS REFERRING TO A

          2   PRERELEASE.

          3   Q.  LET ME TURN NOW TO ANOTHER SUBJECT.  THAT'S YOUR

          4   TESTIMONY ABOUT THE VARIOUS MEETINGS AND DISCUSSIONS BETWEEN

          5   REPRESENTATIVES OF APPLE AND REPRESENTATIVES OF MICROSOFT,

          6   SOME OF WHICH YOU PARTICIPATED IN.

          7             AND, AGAIN, TO TRY TO SPEED THIS UP AND SAVE TIME,

          8   I DON'T WANT TO GO THROUGH INDIVIDUAL MEETINGS AND

          9   CONVERSATIONS INDIVIDUALLY, UNLESS YOU FEEL IT'S NECESSARY

         10   IN A PARTICULAR CASE TO DO THAT.  WHAT I WOULD LIKE TO DO IS

         11   SEE IF THERE ARE SOME AREAS THAT WE CAN AT LEAST AGREE ABOUT

         12   THINGS THAT YOU ACKNOWLEDGE OR SAID DURING ALL OR MOST OF

         13   THESE DISCUSSIONS.

         14             DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT GOAL?

         15   A.  I BELIEVE I DO, YES.

         16   Q.  FIRST OF ALL, YOU WOULD AGREE, WOULDN'T YOU, THAT A KEY

         17   GOAL FOR MICROSOFT IN THESE MEETINGS AND DISCUSSIONS WAS TO

         18   TRY TO GET APPLE TO AGREE TO ADOPT DIRECTX AS THE UNIFIED

         19   RUNTIME FOR WINDOWS?

         20   A.  ONE OF THE GOALS OF DOING THIS -- I HESITATE TO USE THE

         21   WORD "KEY" BECAUSE THAT IMPLIES PRIORITIZATION THAT, YOU

         22   KNOW, I DON'T THINK NECESSARILY WAS THERE -- WAS TO FIND A

         23   WAY TO WORK WITH APPLE IN THE MULTIMEDIA SPACE, BECAUSE FOR

         24   THE SPECIFIC PART OF THE MULTIMEDIA RUNTIME, WHICH IS AUDIO

         25   AND VIDEO PLAYBACK, THE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN APPLE'S SOLUTION
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          1   FOR THAT PROBLEM AND MICROSOFT'S SOLUTION FOR THAT PROBLEM,

          2   WHICH I TRIED TO EXPLAIN YESTERDAY, IS A SOLVE PROBLEM SO

          3   THAT CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE IS NO DIFFERENT.  IT'S JUST THEY

          4   ARE DIFFERENT FOR THE SAKE OF BEING DIFFERENT.  THOSE TWO

          5   PIECES ARE CAUSING OUR CUSTOMERS TO EXPERIENCE A POORER

          6   EXPERIENCE ON WINDOWS THAN WE BELIEVE IS POSSIBLE.  SO THAT

          7   WAS ONE OF THE THINGS I WAS TRYING TO GET AGREEMENT ON, YES.

          8   Q.  WELL, IN FACT, WASN'T THE PRIMARY REASON FOR MOST OF

          9   THESE COMMUNICATIONS, AT LEAST AS THEY RELATED TO THE

         10   AUDIO/VIDEO PLAYBACK RUNTIME, TO GET APPLE TO AGREE TO A

         11   COMMON OR A UNIFIED RUNTIME BASED ON DIRECTX?

         12   A.  NO.  AGAIN, YOU USED WORD "PRIMARY."  AND, YOU KNOW, I

         13   WOULD HAVE BEEN DELIGHTED WITH ANY STEP IN THE DIRECTION OF

         14   SIMPLIFYING THE EXPERIENCE A PERSON HAS IN WINDOWS WITH

         15   REGARD TO VIDEO AND AUDIO PLAYBACK.

         16   Q.  IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT YOU TOLD APPLE IN EACH -- YOU AND

         17   OTHER MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVES TOLD APPLE IN EACH OF THE

         18   CONVERSATIONS THAT YOU DESCRIBE IN YOUR TESTIMONY THAT YOU

         19   WANTED THEM TO AGREE TO A SINGLE AUDIO/VIDEO RUNTIME FOR

         20   WINDOWS?

         21   A.  IT IS FAIR TO SAY THAT IN THOSE MEETINGS WHEN THEY ASKED

         22   US OR WE BROUGHT IT UP -- I CAN'T REMEMBER WHICH WAS WHICH

         23   IN WHICH PARTICULAR MEETINGS, BECAUSE AS IS CLEAR FROM THE

         24   E-MAIL AND FROM MY RECOLLECTION, AT SOME MEETINGS THEY

         25   STARTED THE TOPIC FIRST; AT SOME WE DID -- IF THEY WANTED US
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          1   TO SHIP AND PROMOTE THE QUICKTIME AUTHORING SOLUTION ON

          2   WINDOWS, WE WANTED IT TO TARGET THE AUDIO AND VIDEO RUNTIME

          3   SOLUTION ON WINDOWS -- NOT EXCLUSIVELY BUT AT LEAST IN THE

          4   VERSION THAT WE SHIPPED TO BE ABLE TO DO THAT.  YOU CAN

          5   ACTUALLY MAKE A HIGH-LEVEL API TARGET TO LOWER-LEVEL

          6   FUNCTIONS -- SETS OF CODE WITHOUT DIFFICULTY.  THAT'S DONE

          7   FREQUENTLY.  SO THAT WAS THE CONTEXT IN WHICH THAT POINT WAS

          8   BROUGHT UP.

          9   Q.  NOW, YOU MENTIONED THE CONNECTION TO AUTHORING, BUT

         10   APART FROM WHAT APPLE WANTED TO DO WITH AN AUTHORING TOOL,

         11   DIDN'T MICROSOFT SAY TO APPLE IN EACH OF THESE DISCUSSIONS,

         12   "WE WOULD REALLY LIKE TO TRY TO AGREE WITH YOU ON A UNIFIED

         13   RUNTIME BASED ON DIRECTX FOR WINDOWS"?

         14   A.  FOR AUDIO AND VIDEO PLAYBACK?

         15   Q.  YES.

         16   A.  CERTAINLY I WANT TO AGREE WITH THEM ON THAT.  I WANT TO

         17   MAKE MY AUDIO AND VIDEO SOLUTION GOOD ENOUGH FOR THEM TO USE

         18   IT.  AND I DON'T SEE WHY THAT ISN'T THE CASE NOW.  BUT I DID

         19   TELL THEM, "LOOK, IF IT DOESN'T DO THINGS YOU NEED, YOU

         20   KNOW, I AM MORE THAN HAPPY TO ADD THOSE FEATURES.  I AM MORE

         21   THAN HAPPY TO GIVE YOU ACCESS TO MY SOURCE CODE SO YOU CAN

         22   ADD THOSE MINOR FEATURES YOU NEED."  AND THESE ARE NOT

         23   THINGS TO DO WITH THE CORE FUNCTIONALITY OF AN AUDIO/VIDEO

         24   RUNTIME.  THEY ARE, IN MY OPINION, NIPS AROUND THE EDGE.

         25   THAT'S WHY I HAVE NO CONCERN FOR THEM ONE WAY OR THE OTHER.
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          1             AND MY BELIEF IS THAT BECAUSE OF APPLE'S BUSINESS

          2   MODEL TO RUN QUICKTIME, THEY WOULD ONLY BE INTERESTED IN

          3   DOING THAT IF THEY GOT SOME PORTION OF THE QUICKTIME API,

          4   YOU KNOW, PUSHED FORWARD, WHICH IS FINE.

          5   Q.  NOW, IN ALL OF THESE DISCUSSIONS YOU OR THE OTHER

          6   MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVES MADE CLEAR THAT THIS SINGLE OR

          7   UNIFIED RUNTIME THAT YOU WANTED APPLE TO AGREE TO WOULD HAVE

          8   TO BE BASED ON MICROSOFT'S DIRECTX AND NOT ON QUICKTIME,

          9   CORRECT?

         10   A.  ON WINDOWS, ABSOLUTELY, SIR.

         11   Q.  AND IN THIS CASE THAT MEANS ON DIRECTX?

         12   A.  YES.

         13   Q.  AND, IN FACT, YOU SAID, ESSENTIALLY AT EVERY STEP OF THE

         14   WAY, THAT THAT WAS A NON-NEGOTIABLE POINT FOR MICROSOFT?

         15   A.  YES, THAT WE WOULD NOT REPLACE A PIECE OF WINDOWS WITH A

         16   PIECE OF QUICKTIME WAS ABSOLUTELY A NON-NEGOTIABLE POINT.

         17   Q.  NOW, YOU TALKED TO APPLE ALONG THE WAY ABOUT THEM BEING

         18   ABLE, IF THEY WANTED, TO BUILD MULTIMEDIA SOFTWARE ON TOP OF

         19   THIS SINGLE DIRECTX AUDIO/VIDEO RUNTIME, CORRECT?

         20   A.  YES.  ARE YOU AWARE, BY THE WAY, THAT OUR SINGLE AUDIO

         21   AND VIDEO RUNTIME -- IT WOULD HELP SPEED THINGS ALONG IF YOU

         22   WOULD USE THAT TERMINOLOGY RATHER THAN MULTIMEDIA RUNTIME

         23   BECAUSE THEY ARE SLIGHTLY DIFFERENT THINGS --

         24   Q.  I WILL TRY AND DO THAT.

         25   A.  -- IS BUILT OF A BUNCH OF LEGO BLOCKS.  SO WHEN I SAY
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          1   "ON TOP OF" -- YOU KNOW, YOU GENERALLY THINK OF A HOUSE ON

          2   TOP OF A FOUNDATION.  BUT YOU CAN ACTUALLY EXCHANGE PIECES

          3   OF THE FOUNDATION AS WELL, BECAUSE EACH ONE OF THOSE LEGO

          4   BLOCKS CAN BE REPLACED COMPLETELY.  IN FACT, IT'S POSSIBLE

          5   TO USE THE DIRECTSHOW ARCHITECTURE AND NOT ACTUALLY HAVE ANY

          6   ONE OF THE LEGO BLOCKS BE MADE BY MICROSOFT, JUST SO WE'RE

          7   CLEAR.

          8   Q.  WHAT YOU WERE TALKING ABOUT WITH APPLE, THOUGH, WAS

          9   NOT -- APPLE WAS ALREADY USING THEIR QUICKTIME AUDIO AND

         10   VIDEO RUNTIME ON TOP OF DIRECTX FOUNDATION, THE VERY

         11   LOW-LEVEL PIECE WE TALKED ABOUT YESTERDAY, CORRECT?

         12   A.  YES.  AND I AM SORRY I USED THE WORD "FOUNDATION" IN

         13   TERMS OF A HOUSE AND THEN THAT WORD IS ALSO USED IN TERMS OF

         14   SOFTWARE.

         15   Q.  SO WHAT YOU WERE TALKING TO APPLE ABOUT IN THESE

         16   DISCUSSIONS WAS THEM BUILDING ADDITIONAL SOFTWARE,

         17   AUDIO/VIDEO SOFTWARE ON TOP OF DIRECTX MEDIA?

         18   A.  SPECIFICALLY ON TOP OF DIRECTSHOW, BUT DIRECTSHOW IS A

         19   PIECE OF -- A BUNCH OF LEGOS, AND IT IS POSSIBLE TO USE

         20   DIRECTSHOW WHERE, ONCE THE VIDEO AND AUDIO STREAM IS

         21   RUNNING, YOU'RE NOT USING ANY MICROSOFT FILTERS -- MICROSOFT

         22   LEGO BLOCKS.

         23             SO IT'S NOT COMPLETELY FAIR TO SAY ON TOP OF,

         24   THOUGH WE WOULD GENERALLY DO THAT WHEN WE'RE HAVING AN

         25   ENGINEERING MEETING, BECAUSE WE ASSUME THE ENGINEERS WOULD
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          1   UNDERSTAND.

          2   Q.  DID YOU DISCUSS WITH APPLE WHERE THE LINE WOULD BE

          3   BETWEEN THE DIRECTX RUNTIME THAT YOU WOULD BE AGREEING ON

          4   WITH THEM AND WHATEVER ADDITIONAL SOFTWARE THEY MIGHT BUILD

          5   USING IT OR ON TOP OF IT IN THE WAY YOU JUST DESCRIBED?

          6   A.  I DON'T REMEMBER ANY SPECIFIC CONVERSATIONS ABOUT THE

          7   LINE.  I DO SPECIFICALLY REMEMBER IN THE JUNE MEETING WHERE

          8   PETER HODDIE RAISED AGAIN IN FRONT OF MR. JOBS THE ISSUE OF

          9   HIS BELIEF THAT AN AUDIO/VIDEO RUNTIME AND AN AUDIO/VIDEO

         10   AUTHORING SOLUTION NEED TO BE COUPLED.

         11             I SAID, "LOOK, I AM WILLING TO GIVE YOU MY SOURCE

         12   CODE TREE.  I AM WILLING TO TAKE, YOU KNOW, PIECES OF

         13   FUNCTIONALITY THAT YOU NEED THAT ARE ADDITIVE TO WHAT WE

         14   HAVE.  I AM WILLING TO WORK WITH YOU ON THIS POINT BECAUSE I

         15   AM TIRED OF THE RESULT THAT OUR SQUABBLING OVER THESE MINOR

         16   POINTS, WHICH ARE NOT, YOU KNOW, THE CORE BUSINESS ISSUES

         17   FOR EITHER COMPANY IN THIS SPACE, GETTING PASSED ON TO OUR

         18   CONSUMERS."  AND I DON'T REALLY THINK OF THAT AS A LINE, BUT

         19   I DID HAVE THAT CONVERSATION.

         20   Q.  YOU WOULD AGREE, THOUGH, WOULDN'T YOU, THAT THERE WOULD

         21   NEED TO BE SOME LINE?  THERE WOULD HAVE TO BE SOMETHING THAT

         22   WAS THE RUNTIME THAT YOU WERE AGREEING ON TO BASE ON

         23   DIRECTX, AND THEN THERE WOULD HAVE TO BE THE OTHER THINGS

         24   THAT APPLE DID THAT WORKED WITH OR ON TOP OF IT?

         25   A.  WHILE THAT IS CONCEPTUALLY TRUE, THE PROBLEM WITH SAYING
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          1   A LINE -- AS WE DESCRIBED YESTERDAY WITH THE -- I THINK IT

          2   WAS YOUR ANALOGY ABOUT THE PROTOCOLS TO READ THE FILE OVER

          3   THE INTERNET.  IT IS POSSIBLE IN DIRECTSHOW, THE WAY IT'S

          4   ARCHITECTED, TO BUILD A THING THAT JUST COMMUNICATES TO THE

          5   SERVER OVER THE INTERNET -- A LEGO BLOCK THAT JUST DOES THAT

          6   AND PLUGS INTO THE REST OF THE LEGO BLOCKS IN DIRECTSHOW.

          7             IT IS POSSIBLE TO BUILD ANOTHER CODEC, WHICH IS

          8   ONE LEGO BLOCK THAT PLUGS IN THERE.  IT'S POSSIBLE TO BUILD

          9   A BETTER RENDERER AND PLUG IT IN THERE.  AND IF YOU DO ALL

         10   OF THOSE STEPS, YOU END UP WITH A PIPELINE FOR DISPLAYING

         11   THAT AUDIO AND VIDEO THAT HAS NOTHING TO DO -- NO MICROSOFT

         12   CODE RUNNING IN IT.

         13             THE ADVANTAGE OF BUILDING IT ACCORDING TO THE

         14   DIRECTSHOW ARCHITECTURE IS THAT YOU CAN TAKE ADVANTAGE OF,

         15   YOU KNOW, OTHER PLUG-INS, OTHER CODECS, AND OTHER RENDERERS

         16   THAT OTHER PEOPLE HAVE WRITTEN TO REASSEMBLE THIS.  WHILE

         17   THAT'S AN ENGINEERING ADVANTAGE, THE CONSUMER ADVANTAGE IS

         18   BECAUSE ALL OF THOSE PIECES ARE HANDLED BY THE SAME

         19   ARBITRATION MECHANISM, THE CONSUMER DOESN'T EXPERIENCE

         20   ANYTHING BREAKING, WHICH IS THE GOAL OF THIS CONVERSATION

         21   WITH APPLE.

         22   Q.  NOW, YOU WOULD AGREE, WOULDN'T YOU, THAT IN THESE

         23   DISCUSSIONS, MICROSOFT REPEATEDLY TOLD APPLE THAT IF APPLE

         24   DID NOT AGREE TO HAVE A SINGLE, DIRECTX-BASED RUNTIME --

         25   AUDIO/VIDEO RUNTIME FOR WINDOWS -- THAT MICROSOFT WOULD
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          1   COMPETE AGGRESSIVELY AGAINST QUICKTIME?

          2   A.  LET ME REPHRASE YOUR QUESTION.  I THINK THE ANSWER TO

          3   THAT IS "YES."  BUT JUST TO BE CLEAR, WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS

          4   IF WE CAN'T COME TO AGREEMENT ON THIS THING THAT'S BREAKING

          5   THE WINDOWS EXPERIENCE, WE'RE GOING TO TRY VERY HARD TO

          6   OUTCOMPETE YOU IN THIS SPACE IF THE WINDOWS EXPERIENCE IS

          7   NOT BROKEN IN THE FUTURE.  THAT WOULD BE ABSOLUTELY CORRECT,

          8   SIR.

          9   Q.  AND SPECIFICALLY IN THIS CONTEXT, WHAT WE'RE TALKING

         10   ABOUT IS THE AUDIO/VIDEO RUNTIME FOR WINDOWS, CORRECT, SIR?

         11   A.  YES, WHICH IS VERY DIFFICULT TO COMPETE AGGRESSIVELY IN

         12   BECAUSE THERE'S ALMOST NO DIFFERENCE BETWEEN QUICKTIME'S AND

         13   DIRECTX'S.

         14   Q.  SO WHAT DID YOU MEAN WHEN YOU TOLD APPLE, NOT ONCE BUT

         15   FREQUENTLY, "IF YOU DON'T AGREE TO HAVE A DIRECTX-BASED

         16   RUNTIME, WE WILL COMPETE AGGRESSIVELY AGAINST YOU -- AGAINST

         17   YOUR QUICKTIME"?

         18   A.  ACTUALLY, I THINK I ONLY SAID THAT TO THEM TWICE.  THE

         19   POINT WAS SIMPLY, "HEY, WE ARE NOT BACKING OUT OF THE SPACE.

         20   YOU KNOW, WE ARE GOING TO CONTINUE TO BUILD THIS THING.  WE

         21   THINK IT'S AN IMPORTANT SERVICE FOR WINDOWS.  YOU KNOW, WE

         22   WILL GO LICENSE CODECS THAT WE THINK MAKE IT BETTER."

         23             ONE OF THE THINGS THAT WE COVER AGAIN IN MY DIRECT

         24   TESTIMONY IS EXCLUSIVE LICENSING OF CODECS.  YOU KNOW, ONE

         25   OF THE THINGS APPLE DOES IS EXCLUSIVELY LICENSE CODECS,
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          1   PERIOD.  REALNETWORKS DOES THIS AS WELL.  MICROSOFT DOES

          2   THIS.  IT'S ONE OF THE WAYS YOU COMPETE ON THIS BASICALLY

          3   COMMODITY SPACE.  WE ONLY DO OUR EXCLUSIVE LICENSES,

          4   HOWEVER, FOR WINDOWS, SO THAT, YOU KNOW, THE EXPERIENCE IS

          5   PRESERVED ON THE CROSS-PLATFORM SCENARIOS.

          6   Q.  YOU MENTION YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY.  DO YOU HAVE IT IN

          7   FRONT OF YOU?

          8   A.  YES.

          9   Q.  WOULD YOU LOOK, PLEASE, AT PARAGRAPH 63, WHICH IS ON

         10   PAGE 31.  THIS IS A PARAGRAPH DESCRIBING A MEETING BETWEEN

         11   MR. PHILLIPS OF MICROSOFT AND MR. SCHAAF OF APPLE, CORRECT?

         12   A.  UH-HUH.

         13   Q.  AND IF YOU WOULD LOOK DOWN -- EIGHT LINES UP FROM THE

         14   BOTTOM OF THAT PARAGRAPH, THE LINE THAT BEGINS "IN THAT

         15   MEETING, CHRIS MADE CLEAR."

         16             DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

         17   A.  I AM WORKING ON IT HERE.  EIGHT LINES UP FROM THE

         18   BOTTOM?

         19   Q.  THE BOTTOM OF THE PARAGRAPH.

         20   A.  JUST PLEASE LET ME READ THE WHOLE PARAGRAPH.  IS THAT

         21   OKAY?

         22   Q.  SURE.

         23   A.  YES.

         24   Q.  THE SENTENCE READS, "IN THAT MEETING, CHRIS," -- THAT'S

         25   MR. PHILLIPS -- "MADE CLEAR, AS I HAD IN THE OTHER MEETINGS
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          1   WITH APPLE, THAT MICROSOFT WOULD COMPETE AGGRESSIVELY

          2   AGAINST ANY SOFTWARE THAT SOUGHT TO DUPLICATE THE MULTIMEDIA

          3   FUNCTIONALITY IN WINDOWS."

          4   A.  YES.

          5   Q.  DOES THAT REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION, SIR, THAT THIS IS

          6   SOMETHING YOU SAID AND OTHER MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVES SAID

          7   IN MORE THAN JUST TWO MEETINGS?

          8   A.  WELL, ACTUALLY AT THIS POINT, I THINK I'VE ONLY HAD

          9   THREE MEETINGS WITH MR. PHILLIPS -- OR MR. SCHAAF.  SO

         10   PERHAPS I SAID IT IN MORE THAN TWO.  PERHAPS THAT'S THREE.

         11   Q.  AND HERE IS MR. PHILLIPS SAYING IT IN YET A FOURTH,

         12   CORRECT?

         13   A.  YES, BUT I BELIEVE YOUR QUESTION WAS HOW MANY TIMES I

         14   SAID IT.

         15   Q.  IF I SAID THAT, I APOLOGIZE.  I MEANT MICROSOFT.

         16   A.  OKAY. IT IS FAIR TO SAY THIS WAS NOT, YOU KNOW, A POINT

         17   THAT WAS HIDDEN FROM APPLE OR FROM US.

         18   Q.  FAIR ENOUGH.

         19   A.  OKAY.

         20   Q.  NOW, HELP ME UNDERSTAND.  IF YOU ARE NOT ABLE -- AS

         21   WE'VE JUST DESCRIBED -- IF MICROSOFT WAS NOT ABLE TO AGREE

         22   WITH APPLE ON A RUNTIME FOR WINDOWS THAT WAS BASED ON

         23   DIRECTX, WHY WOULD YOU THEN FEEL IT NECESSARY TO

         24   AGGRESSIVELY COMPETE AGAINST THEM, GIVEN WHAT YOU'VE

         25   DESCRIBED EARLIER WAS YOUR GOAL OF TRYING TO MAKE SURE THAT
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          1   USERS COULD VIEW AS MUCH CONTENT AS POSSIBLE.

          2   A.  BECAUSE TODAY, SIR, USERS CAN'T VIEW AS MUCH CONTENT AS

          3   POSSIBLE ON WINDOWS BECAUSE THE SITUATION IS BROKEN.  YOU

          4   KNOW, ONE OF THE WAYS THAT YOU FIX THAT PROBLEM IS NOT EVEN

          5   A TECHNOLOGY THING.  YOU GO MAKE SURE THAT AS MUCH CONTENT

          6   AS POSSIBLE IS IN FORMATS AND USING CODECS THAT YOU CAN PLAY

          7   BACK.  YOU KNOW, THAT'S ANOTHER WAY TO COMPETE AGGRESSIVELY

          8   IN THIS SPACE BECAUSE THIS SPACE YOU CAN NOT COMPETE

          9   AGGRESSIVELY IN FROM A TECHNOLOGY STANDPOINT.

         10             BUT, AGAIN, THAT'S NOT A NEGATIVE THING

         11   NECESSARILY FOR QUICKTIME.  YOU KNOW, IT'S A THING THAT

         12   MAKES THE CONTENT PLAYABLE BACK THROUGH DIRECTX -- THROUGH

         13   DIRECTSHOW TO BE SPECIFIC.  THAT'S NOT EVEN AT THE EXCLUSION

         14   OF IT BEING PLAYED BACK THROUGH QUICKTIME, BECAUSE ALL OF

         15   THE CODECS THAT MICROSOFT USES IN DIRECTSHOW, APPLE IS FREE

         16   TO USE AS A WINDOWS ISV.

         17   Q.  IN YOUR DISCUSSIONS WITH APPLE, SIR, DID MICROSOFT --

         18   YOU AND MICROSOFT MAKE CLEAR THAT YOU WERE NOT GOING TO LET

         19   ANYONE ELSE, SUCH AS APPLE, HAVE THEIR PLAYBACK OR RUNTIME

         20   BE THE RUNTIME ON WINDOWS INSTEAD OF DIRECTX?

         21   A.  WHEN YOU USE THE WORD "LET," THAT IMPLIES THAT I HAVE

         22   SOME WAY TO STOP THEM, WHICH I WOULDN'T USE IF I DID HAVE.

         23   YOU KNOW, I MAY HAVE USED THE WORD "LET" TO APPLE, BUT THE

         24   CONTEXT WAS VERY CLEAR.  I AM NOT GOING TO, YOU KNOW, SIT

         25   DOWN, WATCH TELEVISION AND NOT DO MY JOB AND LET YOU BEAT ME
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          1   IN THIS SPACE.  I AM GOING TO TRY TO WIN.  THAT'S

          2   COMPETITIVE, ALL RIGHT.  THOSE ARE OUR API'S.  WE WANT THEM

          3   TO BE USED.  IT'S NOT AN ISSUE ABOUT LETTING, THOUGH.  APPLE

          4   DISTRIBUTES ITS SOFTWARE.  PEOPLE USE IT.  WE TRY TO MAKE

          5   OUR SOFTWARE BETTER.

          6   Q.  THE WAY TO AVOID ALL OF THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN FOR

          7   MICROSOFT AND APPLE TO AGREE ON A SINGLE RUNTIME FOR AUDIO

          8   AND VIDEO THAT WOULD USE DIRECTX, CORRECT, SIR?

          9   A.  THE WAY TO MAKE THIS SITUATION, IN MY OPINION, MORE

         10   VALUABLE FOR CUSTOMERS IS TO MOVE THE LOCUS OF

         11   COMPETITION -- WE NEVER SAID WE WOULD NOT COMPETE WITH APPLE

         12   IF THEY USED OUR RUNTIME -- IS TO MOVE THE LOCUS OF

         13   COMPETITION UPSTREAM.

         14             THE PIECE OF DIFFERENTIATION BETWEEN QUICKTIME AND

         15   DIRECTX IS NOT THE AUDIO AND VIDEO RUNTIME, AS WITNESSED BY

         16   THE FACT THAT REALNETWORKS AND APPLE BOTH MAKE THEIR MONEY

         17   SELLING PLAYER PLUSES, NOT SELLING THIS PIECE OF DUPLICATIVE

         18   TECHNOLOGY AT THE BOTTOM OF THE STACK IN THIS MULTIMEDIA

         19   SPACE, IF YOU WILL.

         20   Q.  NOW, YOU MENTIONED A FEW MINUTES AGO AUTHORING

         21   SOFTWARE -- AUTHORING TOOLS.  IN YOUR DISCUSSIONS -- AND,

         22   AGAIN, BY "YOU," I MEAN MICROSOFT -- THE DISCUSSIONS WITH

         23   APPLE, IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT YOU TOLD THEM THAT IF THEY

         24   AGREED TO USE DIRECTX AS THE RUNTIME FOR WINDOWS, THAT YOU

         25   WOULD WORK WITH THEM TO THEN EXPOSE API'S THAT USED OR TOOK
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          1   ADVANTAGE OF APPLE'S AUTHORING SOFTWARE AND APPLE'S

          2   AUTHORING TECHNOLOGY?

          3   A.  YES.  AND THE REASON FOR THAT IS AUTHORING API'S --

          4   ACTUALLY, NOT NECESSARILY AUTHORING API'S, BUT AN AUTHORING

          5   SOLUTION IN THE FORM OF A TOOL IS IMPORTANT TO CREATE

          6   CONTENT FOR THE RUNTIME, WHICH IS -- MY GOAL IS TO GET

          7   CONTENT CREATED FOR MY RUNTIME THAT MAKES -- SO BASICALLY

          8   PEOPLE CAN VIEW THAT WITHOUT HAVING TO HAVE ANYTHING BUT

          9   WINDOWS.  THAT'S ONE OF MY GOALS.

         10             SO APPLE HAS A SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT IN AUTHORING

         11   API'S.  THEY VIEW IT AND ADVERTISE IT AS A CORE STRENGTH OF

         12   THEIRS.  I DON'T WISH TO GO INTO THAT SPACE.  IF THEIR

         13   AUTHORING SOLUTION WOULD WORK FOR MY RUNTIME, AS WELL AS

         14   THEIR OWN, THAT WOULD BE A GOOD THING FOR ME, AND I WOULD BE

         15   MORE THAN HAPPY TO HELP THEM IN THAT WAY.

         16   Q.  AND, IN FACT, WHAT YOU TOLD APPLE WAS THAT IF MICROSOFT

         17   AND APPLE COULD REACH A DEAL WHERE YOU WOULD USE A COMMON

         18   DIRECTX RUNTIME ON WINDOWS, THEN MICROSOFT WOULDN'T GO INTO

         19   THAT SPACE; INSTEAD, YOU WOULD SUPPORT APPLE'S AUTHORING

         20   EFFORTS OR AUTHORING TECHNOLOGIES, CORRECT, SIR?

         21   A.  IN REGARD TO AUTHORING API'S, I DID SAY THAT WE WOULD

         22   ADOPT THE AUTHORING API'S OF QUICKTIME IF THEY TARGETED

         23   DIRECTSHOW -- NOT EXCLUSIVELY, NOT EVEN EXCLUSIVELY ON

         24   WINDOWS.  JUST IF THEY WOULD HELP GENERATE CONTENT FOR

         25   DIRECTSHOW, I WOULD BE HAPPY TO HELP WITH THOSE API'S.
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          1   Q.  BUT YOU MADE IT CLEAR TO APPLE, DIDN'T YOU, SIR, THAT IF

          2   APPLE DID NOT AGREE TO ADOPT THE DIRECTX RUNTIME FOR

          3   WINDOWS, THEN MICROSOFT WOULD GO INTO THE AUTHORING AREA AND

          4   WOULD INCLUDE ITS OWN SUPPORT FOR AUTHORING OF ITS OWN IN

          5   DIRECTX?

          6   A.  YES.  WE WOULD HAVE NO CHOICE.  WE HAVE TO HAVE AN

          7   AUTHORING SOLUTION FOR OUR RUNTIME.  IT'S NOT SOMETHING --

          8   IT'S NOT WORK THAT I, YOU KNOW, LOOK FORWARD TO DOING, BUT

          9   IT IS WORK THAT'S CRITICAL TO THE SUCCESS OF THE RUNTIME.

         10             AS WE STATED YESTERDAY ABOUT LIQUID MOTION, THE

         11   50,000 CUSTOMERS MAXIMUM HAVE IT, BUT THAT CREATES CONTENT

         12   FOR MILLIONS OF USERS.  SO WHILE THE AUTHORING SOLUTION IS

         13   NOT PARTICULARLY INTERESTING TO ME FOR THOSE -- YOU KNOW,

         14   FOR THE SMALL MARKET IT ADDRESSES, THE RESULTS OF THAT SMALL

         15   MARKET IN THE CONTENT CREATED FOR MILLIONS OF USERS IS VERY

         16   INTERESTING TO ME.

         17   Q.  AND DID YOU TELL REPRESENTATIVES OF APPLE THAT IT REALLY

         18   DIDN'T MAKE BUSINESS SENSE FOR MICROSOFT TO GO INTO THE

         19   AUTHORING AREA, BUT YOU WOULD DO IT IF YOU HAD TO -- IN

         20   OTHER WORDS, IF THERE WAS NO AGREEMENT ON USING DIRECTX AS

         21   THE RUNTIME FOR WINDOWS?

         22   A.  NO.  WHAT I SAID WAS -- I BELIEVE THE CONVERSATION

         23   YOU'RE REFERRING TO -- IS THAT IT WAS NOT THE HIGHEST RETURN

         24   FOR THAT PARTICULAR INVESTMENT.  NOW, THAT ASSUMES, SIR,

         25   THAT YOU COULD GET AN AUTHORING SOLUTION, BECAUSE WITHOUT AN
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          1   AUTHORIZING SOLUTION, YOUR RUNTIME HAS NO CONTENT FOR IT.

          2   IT'S A VERY UNINTERESTING RUNTIME.  IT'S LIKE A TELEVISION

          3   SET WITHOUT A VIDEO CAMERA.  BUT YOU SELL A LOT MORE T.V.'S

          4   THAN YOU DO VIDEO CAMERAS.  IT DOESN'T MEAN YOU NECESSARILY

          5   DON'T HAVE TO HAVE A VIDEO CAMERA.  IT MEANS YOU'D PREFER TO

          6   NOT BE IN THAT MARKET IF YOU ARE BUILDING T.V. SETS.

          7   Q.  YOU TOLD APPLE, DIDN'T YOU, SIR, THAT YOU WERE CONFIDENT

          8   THAT, GIVEN MICROSOFT'S RESOURCES AND GIVEN ITS EXPERIENCE,

          9   THAT YOU WOULD BE SUCCESSFUL IF, IN FACT, YOU DID GO INTO

         10   DEVELOPING AN AUTHORING SOLUTION FOR WINDOWS?

         11   A.  I DON'T DOUBT A BIT THAT I TOLD THEM THAT I WOULD WIN IF

         12   I DECIDED TO GO INTO THAT SPACE.  I THINK I SAID YESTERDAY

         13   THAT SOMETIMES I AM FULL OF MYSELF, AND THAT WOULD BE

         14   ANOTHER ONE OF THOSE CASES.

         15   Q.  AND JUST SO WE'RE CLEAR, YOU TOLD THEM THAT MICROSOFT

         16   HAD NO INTEREST IN AND WOULD NOT GO INTO THAT SPACE IF YOU

         17   WERE ABLE TO WORK OUT A DEAL TO USE DIRECTX AS THE RUNTIME

         18   ON WINDOWS WHEREBY YOU WOULD THEN BE SUPPORTING APPLE'S

         19   AUTHORING SOLUTION, CORRECT, SIR?

         20   A.  IF APPLE PROVIDED AN AUTHORING SOLUTION THAT TARGETED

         21   DIRECTX, YOU KNOW, I WOULD PROBABLY NOT INVEST AS RAPIDLY IN

         22   THAT SOLUTION AS OTHERWISE.  I NEVER PROMISED TO STAY OUT OF

         23   THAT SPACE.  I DID SAY I WOULD SHIP THEIR AUTHORING API'S IF

         24   THEY TARGETED DIRECTX, AND THAT I WOULD HELP MAKE SURE THOSE

         25   API'S WORKED WELL ON WINDOWS.
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          1             THE POINT THERE IS I NEED AN AUTHORING SOLUTION.

          2   THEY ARE VERY PROUD OF THEIR AUTHORING SOLUTION, AND FROM

          3   ALL OF THE INQUIRIES I HAVE MADE, WHICH HAVE NOT BEEN MANY,

          4   THEIR AUTHORING SOLUTION SEEMS TO BE ADEQUATE.  THAT WOULD

          5   BE A GOOD THING FOR DIRECTX.

          6   Q.  NOW, IN YOUR DISCUSSIONS AND OTHER MICROSOFT

          7   REPRESENTATIVES' DISCUSSIONS WITH APPLE, YOU AND THEY

          8   BELIEVED THAT IF APPLE, IN FACT, AGREED TO USE DIRECTX AS

          9   THE RUNTIME -- AUDIO/VIDEO RUNTIME FOR WINDOWS -- THEN APPLE

         10   WOULD NO LONGER DEVELOP OR OFFER ITS OWN RUNTIME -- ITS OWN

         11   QUICKTIME RUNTIME FOR WINDOWS.

         12             DO YOU BELIEVE THAT, SIR?

         13   A.  I BELIEVE FOR THE PORTIONS THAT ARE DUPLICATIVE TO

         14   DIRECTX, THERE WOULD BE NO REASON FOR THEM TO DO THAT

         15   BECAUSE, AS I'VE SAID BEFORE, THOSE PIECES ARE, IN MY

         16   OPINION, COMPLETELY INTERCHANGEABLE.

         17             HOWEVER, IF THEY WANTED TO, THAT WAS FINE.  I WAS

         18   ONLY CLEAR ON THE FACT THAT I WILL NOT DISTRIBUTE THAT AS

         19   PART OF WINDOWS.  AND WE COULD GO INTO ALL THE REASONS WHY

         20   THAT'S TRUE IF YOU'D LIKE.

         21   Q.  WELL, YOU BELIEVED, DIDN'T YOU, THAT THERE WAS NO

         22   INCENTIVE WHATSOEVER FOR APPLE TO CONTINUE WITH ITS

         23   QUICKTIME EFFORTS, AT LEAST TO THE EXTENT THAT THEY

         24   OVERLAPPED WITH THE DIRECTX RUNTIME YOU WERE PROPOSING THAT

         25   THEY USE, IF THEY ACCEPTED YOUR PROPOSAL, CORRECT?
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          1   A.  YES.  I BELIEVED THERE WAS NO REASON FOR THEM TO

          2   DUPLICATE THAT EFFORT IF THEY WERE ALREADY USING IT.  THAT'S

          3   DIFFERENT FROM ASKING THEM TO STOP.  I JUST DIDN'T THINK IT

          4   MADE SENSE.

          5   Q.  AND, IN FACT, YOU THOUGHT IT WOULD BE SILLY FOR THEM TO

          6   CONTINUE THEIR EFFORTS IF THEY ACCEPTED YOUR PROPOSAL,

          7   CORRECT, SIR?

          8   A.  I THINK I MIGHT VERY WELL HAVE USED THE WORD "SILLY"

          9   DESCRIBING THEM REPLICATING FUNCTIONS ON WINDOWS.  THAT'S

         10   DIFFERENT, BY THE WAY, FROM THEM CREATING OTHER PORTIONS OF

         11   THEIR RUNTIME, JUST SO WE'RE CLEAR.  THERE ARE PIECES OF THE

         12   RUNTIME THAT ARE COMPLETELY DUPLICATIVE, AND THERE ARE

         13   PIECES OF THE RUNTIME, LIKE QUICKTIME VR, THAT ARE

         14   COMPLETELY UNIQUE TO QUICKTIME.

         15   Q.  THAT'S WHAT WE TALKED ABOUT EARLIER --

         16   A.  RIGHT.

         17   Q.  -- THEM POTENTIALLY BUILDING OTHER SOFTWARE THAT RAN

         18   WITH OR ON TOP OF THE RUNTIME THAT YOU WERE PROPOSING THEY

         19   ADOPT AS DIRECTX?

         20   A.  YES.  I MEAN, LET'S JUST BE CLEAR.  THEY ALREADY BUILD

         21   ON TOP OF DIRECTX FOUNDATION.  WE WERE ASKING THEM TO TAKE

         22   ANOTHER COMPONENT OUT OF DIRECTX MEDIA THAT IS, AGAIN,

         23   DUPLICATIVE OF THINGS THEY DO.  THIS IS NOT ABOUT

         24   ELIMINATING THE QUICKTIME RUNTIME IN THE BROAD SENSE, BUT

         25   THE PIECE, YOU KNOW, THAT EVERYBODY IN THE ROOM KNEW WE WERE
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          1   TALKING ABOUT WAS THE AUDIO AND VIDEO PLAYBACK PIECE,

          2   WITHOUT THE UI -- WITHOUT ANYTHING THE CUSTOMER WOULD

          3   DETERMINE AS QUICKTIME OR NOT.

          4   Q.  AND, IN FACT, SIR, EVERYBODY IN THE ROOM WHEN YOU WERE

          5   HAVING THESE DISCUSSIONS, KNEW THAT IT WOULD MAKE NO SENSE

          6   AND, THEREFORE, APPLE WOULD NOT CONTINUE TO PURSUE ITS

          7   QUICKTIME RUNTIME EFFORTS FOR WINDOWS, AT LEAST TO THE

          8   EXTENT THAT THEY OVERLAPPED, IF IT ACCEPTED MICROSOFT'S

          9   PROPOSAL TO USE THE DIRECTX RUNTIME, CORRECT, SIR?

         10   A.  I BELIEVE IT IS TRUE THAT EVERYONE AT APPLE KNEW WHAT WE

         11   WERE TALKING ABOUT, BUT AS TO THEIR EXACT BUSINESS INTERESTS

         12   ONE WAY OR THE OTHER, I COULDN'T TELL YOU.  I HAVE NEVER

         13   BEEN ABLE TO ASCERTAIN THAT TO MY SATISFACTION.

         14   Q.  NOW, MR. ENGSTROM, IN YOUR TESTIMONY, YOU SUGGEST THAT

         15   NO ONE AT APPLE EVER CONSIDERED THE PROPOSALS THAT YOU MADE

         16   IN THESE VARIOUS MEETINGS, AND SPECIFICALLY AT THE JUNE 15TH

         17   MEETING, INAPPROPRIATE OR WRONGFUL IN ANY SENSE.  DO YOU

         18   RECALL THAT?

         19   A.  NO ONE EVER SUGGESTED THAT TO ME AT ALL.

         20   Q.  IN FACT, SIR, DIDN'T STEVE JOBS OF APPLE TELL MICROSOFT

         21   SEVERAL TIMES THAT HE WAS FURIOUS WITH THE NETSHOW TEAM, AND

         22   PARTICULARLY WAS UNHAPPY ABOUT YOUR PRESENTATION AT THE

         23   JUNE 15TH MEETING?

         24   A.  STEVE JOBS NEVER TOLD ME THAT.  AND I AM NOT THE NETSHOW

         25   TEAM.
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          1             THE COURT:  I'M SORRY?

          2             THE WITNESS:  I'M SORRY.  STEVE JOBS NEVER

          3   COMMUNICATED THAT TO ME IN THE MEETING AT ALL, AND I AM NOT

          4   THE NETSHOW TEAM.  THE NETSHOW SERVER TEAM IS -- THEY BUILD

          5   THIS -- THE BROADCAST CENTER, IF YOU WILL.  I BUILD THE

          6   TELEVISION SETS, OR DID AT THE TIME.

          7   BY MR. MALONE:

          8   Q.  DID YOU EVER HEAR WHETHER MR. JOBS TOLD YOU DIRECTLY OR

          9   NOT THAT HE WAS UPSET WITH YOUR PRESENTATION AND YOUR

         10   PROPOSAL IN THE JUNE 15TH MEETING?

         11   A.  STEVE JOBS SENT A PIECE OF MAIL TO BEN WALDMAN, WHICH I

         12   DID NOT SEE, TO THE BEST OF MY RECOLLECTION, BUT BEN

         13   MENTIONED TO ME THAT STEVE SAID I'D COME DOWN THERE AND

         14   BASICALLY TOLD HIM, YOU KNOW, THAT SOME PIECE OF QUICKTIME

         15   WAS NO LONGER RELEVANT, WHICH IS STEVE JOBS'

         16   MISCHARACTERIZING WHAT I SAID.

         17             AT THE SAME MEETING TO ME, HE OFFERED TO -- WELL,

         18   HE SUGGESTED THAT WE THROW OUT ALL OF DIRECTX AND ADOPT ALL

         19   OF QUICKTIME.  HE ALSO SAID, YOU KNOW, "WHY ARE YOU HERE?

         20   YOU'RE BEING SO NICE."  THOSE ARE NOT THE STATEMENTS I

         21   EXPECT SOMEONE TO SAY WHEN THEY ARE, YOU KNOW, TELLING ME

         22   THAT I AM BEING, YOU KNOW, DISRESPECTFUL OR THREATENING,

         23   WHICH I WASN'T.

         24             I BELIEVE DR. TEVANIAN EVEN TESTIFIED THAT THE

         25   MEETING WAS COMPLETELY REASONABLE.
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          1   Q.  LET'S LOOK QUICKLY AT THE E-MAIL THAT YOU'RE TALKING

          2   ABOUT.  IT'S GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 908, AND I WOULD ASK THAT IT

          3   BE PLACED IN FRONT OF YOU.

          4             AND THIS IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE, YOUR HONOR.

          5             IN ORDER TO KEEP THIS FROM BEING A LENGTHY

          6   EXERCISE, I'M GOING TO ASK YOU PRIMARILY ABOUT THE FIRST

          7   PAGE, AND I WOULD LIKE YOU TO LOOK AT THE SECOND PAGE TOWARD

          8   THE BOTTOM, ONLY TO REFRESH YOURSELF THAT IT BEGINS WITH

          9   YOUR REPORT TO MR. GATES AND OTHERS ABOUT THE JUNE 15TH

         10   MEETING WITH MR. JOBS.  AND THEN MR. GATES THEN PASSES IT ON

         11   TO OTHER PEOPLE, ASKING IF THERE'S ANYTHING NEW THAT HE

         12   SHOULD KNOW.

         13   A.  YES.

         14   Q.  OKAY.  LOOKING AT THE MIDDLE OF THE FIRST PAGE, DO YOU

         15   SEE THAT, THE E-MAIL WRITTEN BY MR. WALDMAN TO BILL GATES

         16   AND OTHERS?

         17   A.  YES.

         18   Q.  YOU'RE COPIED ON THIS E-MAIL?

         19   A.  YES.

         20   Q.  AND WHO WAS MR. WALDMAN AT THIS TIME?

         21   A.  I BELIEVE HE WAS THE GENERAL MANAGER OF MAC THINGS.  I

         22   DON'T KNOW THE EXACT WORDAGE AFTER THAT.

         23   Q.  HE WAS ESSENTIALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR MUCH OR ALL OF THE

         24   APPLE-MICROSOFT RELATIONSHIP?

         25   A.  I WOULDN'T GO SO FAR AS TO SAY THAT.  I KNOW HE BUILT
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          1   MOST OF THE THING THAT WE RUN -- THAT WE PROVIDE THAT RUN ON

          2   THE MAC.

          3   Q.  MR. WALDMAN BEGINS IN THE FIRST FULL PARAGRAPH THERE BY

          4   SAYING, "STEVE HAS TOLD ME TWICE (AND I BELIEVE MENTIONED TO

          5   GREG MAFFEI ALSO) THAT HE IS FURIOUS WITH THE NETSHOW TEAM,

          6   BELIEVES THAT ERIC'S PRESENTATION WAS ESSENTIALLY, QUOTE,

          7   `APPLE SHOULD GIVE UP QUICKTIME AND USE OUR STUFF.'"  AND

          8   THEN IT GOES ON.  DO YOU SEE THAT?

          9   A.  YES.

         10   Q.  DOES THIS INDICATE TO YOU THAT MR. JOBS WAS AT LEAST

         11   COMMUNICATING TO MICROSOFT THAT HIS VIEW OF WHAT YOU WERE

         12   PROPOSING AT THE JUNE 15TH MEETING WAS THAT APPLE SHOULD

         13   GIVE UP QUICKTIME AND USE MICROSOFT'S DIRECTX?

         14   A.  I WOULD SAY THAT THAT'S CERTAINLY WHAT BEN WALDMAN'S

         15   MAIL SAYS.  I WASN'T PRIVILEGED TO WHAT STEVE JOBS SAID TO

         16   BEN.  YOU'LL NOTICE IN THE FIRST PARAGRAPH HERE I SAID I

         17   WOULD AGREE THERE IS A BIG DISCONNECT.

         18             AND IF YOU'LL ALSO NOTICE IN THE MAIL I SENT TO

         19   BILL AS A SUMMARY OF THIS, I MENTIONED THAT -- YOU KNOW, HE

         20   ASKED WHY WE'RE HERE.  I SAY, "HE ASKED US, `WHY DON'T YOU

         21   JUST THROW OUT DIRECTSHOW AND ADOPT QUICKTIME.'"  I NEVER

         22   SAID ANYTHING CLOSE TO THAT IN REVERSE, SUBSTANTIVELY OR

         23   OTHERWISE.

         24             AND I TOLD HIM MY ONLY TWO NON-NEGOTIABLE POINTS.

         25   YOU'LL NOTICE THE BOTTOM THERE, IT SAYS, TIM SCHAAF SAID
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          1   HE'D NEVER SEEN STEVE SIT THROUGH AN ENTIRE SLIDE

          2   PRESENTATION BEFORE.  I MEAN, THAT IS LITERALLY WHAT TIM

          3   SCHAAF SAID TO ME ON THE WAY OUT THE DOOR, "STEVE MUST HAVE

          4   REALLY LIKED THE PRESENTATION."

          5             SO THE FACT THAT I GET THIS MAIL FROM BEN WALDMAN

          6   OVER A CONVERSATION THAT STEVE ALLEGEDLY HAD WITH HIM --YOU

          7   KNOW, MY RESPONSE IS VERY CLEAR.  I THINK THERE'S A BIG

          8   DISCONNECT HERE.  I DON'T KNOW IF STEVE WAS TRYING TO MAKE

          9   TROUBLE FOR ME AT MICROSOFT OR WHAT.  I DON'T KNOW.

         10   Q.  PART OF THE E-MAIL YOU WERE JUST REFERRING TO AT THE

         11   BOTTOM OF THE LAST PAGE, WHICH IS PART OF YOUR REPORT ON THE

         12   MEETING -- DO YOU SEE THAT?

         13   A.  UH-HUH.

         14   Q.  ONE OF THE TWO THINGS YOU SAID WERE COMPLETELY

         15   NON-NEGOTIABLE WAS DIRECTSHOW GOING AWAY, CORRECT?

         16   A.  YES.

         17   Q.  AND WE TALKED ABOUT THAT EARLIER.

         18   A.  YES.

         19   Q.  IN ADDITION, YOU SAY RIGHT BELOW THERE, "I ALSO SAID WE

         20   COULD POSSIBLY SHIP THE QUICKTIME API IF IT WAS

         21   RE-IMPLEMENTED ON TOP OF DIRECTX MEDIA (FOR VARIOUS AND

         22   SUNDRY REASONS, THIS IS NOT DANGEROUS FOR US.  I CAN EXPLAIN

         23   IN DETAIL IF NEED BE.)"

         24   A.  YES.

         25   Q.  DO YOU SEE THAT?
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          1   A.  YES.

          2   Q.  WHAT DID YOU MEAN BY SAYING THAT HAVING THE QUICKTIME

          3   API'S IMPLEMENTED ON TOP OF DIRECTX MEDIA WOULD NOT BE

          4   DANGEROUS TO MICROSOFT?

          5   A.  EXACTLY WHAT I HAVE DESCRIBED PREVIOUSLY ABOUT THE WAY I

          6   EXPECTED QUICKTIME TO USE DIRECTSHOW, MR. MALONE.  I AM

          7   COMMUNICATING TO PEOPLE WHO KNOW HOW DIRECTSHOW IS

          8   ARCHITECTED IN THIS PIECE OF MAIL, AND HAVE WRITTEN SOME

          9   CODE IN THEIR LIVES IN THE PAST.  AND SO I WAS BEING -- I

         10   WAS USING SHORTHAND.  I COULD HAVE WRITTEN SEVERAL

         11   PARAGRAPHS ABOUT HOW THEY WOULD USE DIRECTSHOW AND DIRECTX

         12   MEDIA, BUT I CHOSE NOT TO.

         13   Q.  WHAT DID YOU EXPECT THOSE PEOPLE TO UNDERSTAND WHEN YOU

         14   WROTE THE WORDS "THIS WOULD NOT BE DANGEROUS FOR MICROSOFT"?

         15   A.  AT MICROSOFT, IN GENERAL -- YOU KNOW, WINDOWS IS ABOUT

         16   API'S; WE BUILD API'S.  THIS PARTICULAR SPACE IS NOT

         17   SOMETHING WHERE THE API'S ARE RELEVANT ONE WAY OR THE OTHER.

         18   AND THAT'S AN EASY THING FOR PEOPLE WHO DON'T DEAL IN THIS

         19   SPACE TO NOT UNDERSTAND -- TO MISS.

         20             AND SO WHAT I WAS SAYING HERE IS SIMPLY -- YOU

         21   KNOW, BASICALLY, I CAN TRANSLATE.  I AGREED THEY COULD DO

         22   THIS.  I PUT THE WORD "POSSIBLY" IN SO THERE WOULDN'T BE ANY

         23   FIRE DRILLS WHEN THEY READ THIS.  AND, YOU KNOW, THAT THEY

         24   ARE GOING TO SIT ON TOP OF DIRECTX MEDIA.  AND, BY THE WAY,

         25   THIS WILL MEAN API'S, BUT IT'S NOT DANGEROUS FOR US, WHICH
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          1   IS JUST A WAY TO REMIND THEM THAT, "HEY, WE'VE HAD THIS

          2   CONVERSATION NUMEROUS TIMES IN THE PAST.  JUST REMEMBER,

          3   THIS IS NOT A COMPETITIVE ISSUE FOR US IN THE DIRECTX

          4   SPACE."

          5   Q.  MR. ENGSTROM, IF APPLE HAD ACCEPTED MICROSOFT'S PROPOSAL

          6   AND BEGUN USING DIRECTX AS THE AUDIO/VIDEO RUNTIME ON

          7   WINDOWS, APPLE WOULD HAVE THEN BEEN DEPENDENT ON MICROSOFT

          8   FOR -- IN ORDER FOR APPLE'S AUTHORING SOLUTION EFFORTS TO

          9   WORK, AT LEAST AS THEY RAN ON THAT PARTICULAR RUNTIME,

         10   CORRECT?

         11   A.  TO THE EXTENT THAT THEIR OWN RUNTIME WAS NOT SHIPPING IN

         12   WINDOWS, YES.  BUT THE WAY YOU HAVE TO LOOK AT THAT IS

         13   TODAY, YOU KNOW, THEY BUILD THEIR OWN RUNTIME FOR WINDOWS.

         14   WE NEVER TOLD THEM THEY HAD TO GIVE THAT UP.  IF THEIR

         15   AUTHORING SOLUTION AT ANY POINT, YOU KNOW, DIDN'T HAVE ALL

         16   OF THE FEATURES IT NEEDED AS A RESULT OF SITTING ON TOP OF

         17   DIRECTSHOW, THEIR EXISTING QUICKTIME RUNTIME WOULD BE

         18   AVAILABLE FOR THEM TO LOAD ONTO WINDOWS.

         19             THE THING YOU HAVE TO UNDERSTAND IS THE QUICKTIME

         20   AUTHORING API'S, IF THEY TARGETED DIRECTSHOW, WOULD NOT STOP

         21   TARGETING THE QUICKTIME API'S, BECAUSE ON THE MACINTOSH

         22   THEY'D STILL BE USING THE QUICKTIME RUNTIME.  AND AN API

         23   THAT HIGH LEVEL WOULD -- THEY WOULD KEEP THE SAME SOURCE

         24   CODE BETWEEN THE TWO, AS THEY DO FOR QUICKTIME NOW, FOR THE

         25   MOST PART, AS NEAR AS I'VE UNDERSTOOD FROM TALKING TO PETER
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          1   HODDIE.

          2   Q.  NOW, YOU CAN UNDERSTAND, CAN'T YOU, THAT APPLE WOULD BE

          3   RELUCTANT TO BE DEPENDENT ON MICROSOFT AND CHANGES MICROSOFT

          4   MIGHT MAKE TO THE UNDERLYING DIRECTX RUNTIME IF IT ACCEPTED

          5   THIS PROPOSAL?

          6   A.  I CAN NOT BELIEVE THAT THAT'S A SERIOUS CONCERN IN THIS

          7   CASE, GIVEN THE FACT THAT THE AUDIO AND VIDEO RUNTIME IS SO

          8   COMPLETELY AND UTTERLY WELL-UNDERSTOOD AND HAS NO ELEMENTS

          9   OF DIFFERENTIATION IN IT, OR SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENTIATION, I

         10   SHOULD SAY.

         11             IT'S NOT THE PLACE WHERE THEY SHOULD BE CONCERNED.

         12   THEY'RE DEPENDENT ON DIRECTX FOUNDATION TODAY, SIR.  AND

         13   THAT DOESN'T SEEM TO CAUSE THEM ANY CONCERN EITHER.

         14   Q.  IT'S TRUE, ISN'T IT -- I BELIEVED YOU SAID A LITTLE

         15   EARLIER THAT THE AUTHORING SOLUTION IS ESSENTIALLY UNIQUE TO

         16   THE PARTICULAR RUNTIME THAT IT RUNS ON?  EACH AUTHORING

         17   SOLUTION HAS ITS OWN RUNTIME AND WILL ONLY WORK THERE?

         18   A.  WHAT I SPECIFICALLY SAID IS THAT WAS A POINT THAT PETER

         19   HODDIE RAISED ABOUT AUDIO AND VIDEO RUNTIMES.  I DON'T

         20   HAPPEN TO AGREE WITH MR. HODDIE ON THAT, BUT RATHER THAN

         21   MAKE THAT A POINT OF CONTENTION, I WAS WILLING TO BASICALLY

         22   GIVE HIM ACCESS TO THE CODE NECESSARY FOR HIM TO ADD THE

         23   THINGS HE THOUGHT HE NEEDED.  I WAS WILLING TO BE VERY

         24   ACCOMMODATING THERE.

         25             THE COURT:  IF YOU'RE CHANGING SUBJECTS NOW,
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          1   MR. MALONE, WOULD THIS BE AN APPROPRIATE TIME FOR A RECESS?

          2             MR. MALONE:  THAT WOULD BE FINE, YOUR HONOR, OR I

          3   THINK I'M PROBABLY ONE TO TWO MINUTES FROM BEING DONE, IF I

          4   SHOULD GO AHEAD AND WRAP UP.

          5             THE COURT:  WELL, GO AHEAD.  FINISH UP.

          6   BY MR. MALONE:

          7   Q.  MR. ENGSTROM, IN FACT, IN THE MEETINGS AND THE

          8   DISCUSSIONS THAT YOU HAD WITH APPLE, ISN'T IT TRUE YOU THAT

          9   MICROSOFT REPRESENTATIVES DIDN'T JUST TELL THEM THAT, YOU

         10   KNOW, IF YOU ADOPT -- THAT IT WASN'T JUST OBVIOUS THAT IF

         11   APPLE ADOPTED DIRECTX THAT THEY WOULD STOP THEIR QUICKTIME

         12   DEVELOPMENT EFFORTS FOR WINDOWS BECAUSE THEY WOULDN'T MAKE

         13   ANY SENSE, BUT, IN FACT, THAT MICROSOFT TOLD APPLE

         14   REPRESENTATIVES THAT THAT'S WHAT YOU WANTED THEM TO DO?

         15             THE COURT:  I DON'T UNDERSTAND YOUR QUESTION.

         16   COULD YOU ASK --

         17             THE WITNESS:  THANK YOU.

         18             MR. MALONE:  LET ME RETRACT THAT.

         19             THE WITNESS:  I WAS TRYING TO FIGURE OUT A WAY TO

         20   SAY THAT.

         21   BY MR. MALONE:

         22   Q.  ISN'T IT TRUE, MR. ENGSTROM, THAT IN YOUR DISCUSSIONS

         23   AND MEETINGS WITH APPLE, MICROSOFT TOLD THEM, "WE WOULD LIKE

         24   YOU TO ADOPT DIRECTX AS THE WINDOWS RUNTIME AND NOT CONTINUE

         25   TO DEVELOP OR DISTRIBUTE QUICKTIME AS A WINDOWS RUNTIME"?
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          1   A.  IT IS COMPLETELY FAIR TO SAY -- LET ME TRY TO REPHRASE

          2   THIS.  I THINK YOUR STATEMENT IS GENERALLY CORRECT.  BUT THE

          3   PROBLEM IS WITH SOME OF THE WORDS YOU CHOSE.

          4             WE DEFINITELY EXPRESSED TO THEM, "ONE, WE WOULD

          5   LIKE YOU TO ADOPT DIRECTSHOW.  TWO, WE WOULD LIKE TO MAKE IT

          6   FANTASTIC FOR YOU, YOU KNOW, TO THE POINT THAT, YOU KNOW,

          7   YOU CAN COME UP, LIKE MANY OF OUR ISV'S DO, AND WORK WITH

          8   US, YOU KNOW, IN OUR SOURCE TREE TO MAKE SURE THIS MEETS

          9   YOUR NEEDS."  THIS IS A SPOT WHERE WE'RE SQUABBLING, AND

         10   THAT'S -- I USE THAT WORD VERY CAREFULLY, BECAUSE WE'RE NOT

         11   DIFFERENTIATING OUR PRODUCTS AT THIS POINT.  WE'RE JUST

         12   MAKING WORK FOR BOTH OF THE COMPANIES AND FOR OUR CUSTOMERS

         13   THAT DOESN'T VALUE ANY OF US IN THIS SPACE.

         14             THE THIRD THING, I ALMOST CERTAINLY SAID, THOUGH I

         15   DO NOT REMEMBER, YOU KNOW, "I WOULD LIKE THIS TO BE A GOOD

         16   ENOUGH SOLUTION THAT YOU DO NOT CONTINUE TO DEVELOP THE

         17   QUICKTIME RUNTIME PORTIONS THAT ARE DUPLICATIVE OF THIS" --

         18   AND I PROBABLY DIDN'T USE ALL OF THOSE WORDS WHEN I WAS

         19   TALKING TO MR. HODDIE OR MR. SCHAAF, BECAUSE I ASSUMED THEY

         20   KNEW THAT -- "I WOULD LIKE TO MAKE THIS A GOOD ENOUGH

         21   SOLUTION SO YOU DON'T FEEL COMPELLED TO DO THAT."

         22             BUT NONE OF THE PRESENTATIONS WE EVER MADE TO THEM

         23   WERE PREDICATED ON THE FACT THAT THEY WOULD HAVE TO STOP

         24   DOING THAT.  THE ONLY THING THAT ANY OF OUR DISTRIBUTION OF

         25   THE QUICKTIME AUTHORING API'S WAS PREDICATED ON WAS THAT
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          1   THOSE AUTHORING API'S WOULD TARGET DIRECTSHOW, AS WELL AS

          2   QUICKTIME.

          3   Q.  AND, IN FACT, SIR, WASN'T IT A GOAL OF MICROSOFT

          4   MANAGEMENT IN THESE DISCUSSIONS TO GET APPLE TO GIVE UP

          5   HAVING A RUNTIME ON WINDOWS?

          6   A.  THE REASON BEHIND THAT --

          7   Q.  WELL, FIRST OF ALL, IS THAT TRUE, SIR?

          8   A.  I WOULD SAY THAT THAT IS -- IN THE CONTEXT I THINK

          9   YOU'RE USING THAT, THAT'S PROBABLY NOT TRUE, BUT IN THE

         10   CONTEXT WAS THAT, IN FACT, SAID?  YES.

         11   Q.  WAS THAT SAID TO APPLE?

         12   A.  NO.  I THINK IT WAS SAID TO ME.  I DON'T THINK IT WAS

         13   EVER SAID TO APPLE BECAUSE I WAS THE PERSON TALKING TO

         14   APPLE.  AND I DOUBT VERY HIGHLY I WOULD USE THOSE WORDS WITH

         15   THEM.

         16   Q.  THAT WAS SAID TO YOU BY MICROSOFT MANAGEMENT?

         17   A.  PROBABLY, YES.

         18   Q.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK VERY QUICKLY AT GOVERNMENT

         19   EXHIBIT 270, WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

         20   A.   THANK YOU.

         21   Q.  THE FIRST SUBSTANTIVE E-MAIL HERE IS A MESSAGE FROM

         22   DAVID COLE RESPONDING TO BILL GATES AND A MESSAGE THAT

         23   MR. GATES HAD SENT HIM ON APRIL 28TH, 1998, CORRECT?

         24   A.  YES.

         25   Q.  AND, IN FACT, WAS IT THIS E-MAIL AND MR. GATES' INTEREST
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          1   IN TRYING TO SEE CONVERGENCE BETWEEN QUICKTIME AND

          2   MICROSOFT'S RUNTIME THAT LED TO THE JUNE 15TH MEETING?

          3   A.  I BELIEVE SO, YES.  I THINK AT THIS POINT I HAD PRETTY

          4   MUCH GIVEN UP ON TRYING TO TALK TO APPLE ABOUT ANYTHING

          5   PERSONALLY.

          6   Q.  THERE WAS STILL A HIGH PRIORITY FOR MICROSOFT

          7   MANAGEMENT, INCLUDING MR. GATES, CORRECT?

          8   A.  I TAKE EXCEPTION TO THE WORD "HIGH PRIORITY."  IT WAS AN

          9   ISSUE SIMPLY OF, GEE, "CAN WE -- NOW THAT WE'VE -- CAN WE

         10   JUST RE-EXAMINE THIS SPACE BECAUSE IT'S" -- AND PARDON THE

         11   USE OF THE TERM -- "IT'S STUPID THAT WE'RE SQUABBLING OVER

         12   THIS LOW-LEVEL STUFF.  IT'S NOT IN APPLE'S INTEREST; IT'S

         13   NOT IN OUR INTEREST; IT'S NOT IN THE CONSUMERS' INTEREST."

         14   AND THAT'S WHAT I READ BILL'S MAIL TO SAY.  THAT'S WHAT I

         15   READ DAVID'S MAIL TO SAY.

         16   Q.  SO WOULD IT BE FAIR TO SAY IT WAS IMPORTANT ENOUGH TO

         17   MR. GATES THAT HE SENT THIS E-MAIL TO MR. COLE AND OTHERS?

         18   A.  THE WAY I WOULD PARAPHRASE -- AND AGAIN, I DON'T KNOW

         19   WHAT BILL'S SAYING, BUT I GUESS IT WAS IMPORTANT ENOUGH THAT

         20   HE WROTE A PARAGRAPH ABOUT IT ONCE A YEAR.

         21   Q.  IN RESPONDING TO MR. GATES, DAVID COLE WRITES -- FIRST

         22   OF ALL, HE SAYS THAT YOU AND HE HAVE TALKED ABOUT THIS

         23   SUBJECT A BIT, CORRECT?

         24   A.  YES.

         25   Q.  HE THEN SAYS IN THE BEGINNING OF THE NEXT PARAGRAPH, "IF
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          1   WE CAN GET APPLE TO GIVE UP ON HAVING A RUNTIME ON WINDOWS

          2   THEN COOPERATION ON COMMON CODEC MODELS AND SUCH WILL BE

          3   EASY," CORRECT, SIR?

          4   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

          5   Q.  WAS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT MR. COLE'S VIEW IN APRIL

          6   OF 1998 WAS THAT MICROSOFT SHOULD GET APPLE TO GIVE UP

          7   HAVING A RUNTIME ON WINDOWS?

          8   A.  MR. MALONE, YOU HAVE TO UNDERSTAND --

          9   Q.  CAN YOU TRY TO ANSWER MY QUESTION FIRST, SIR, AND THEN

         10   SAY WHATEVER IT IS YOU --

         11   A.  NO, IT WAS NOT MY UNDERSTANDING THAT HE MEANT TO GIVE UP

         12   IN THE CONTEXT YOU'RE USING THE WORD.  YES.  IF YOU MEAN

         13   THEY HAVE TO STOP BASING THEIR ENTIRE BUSINESS MODEL AROUND

         14   THESE LOW-LEVEL ROUTINES, THEN, YES, THEY WOULD HAVE TO GIVE

         15   UP ON A BUSINESS MODEL BASED AROUND THOSE LOW-LEVEL

         16   ROUTINES.

         17             YOU WILL NOTICE THAT HE SAYS, "SINCE WE DON'T

         18   UNDERSTAND THE QUICKTIME BUSINESS MODEL, IT'S HARD FOR US TO

         19   KNOW THE LEVERAGE POINTS."

         20             WHAT HE MEANS SIMPLY THERE IS IT'S HARD FOR US TO

         21   UNDERSTAND WHAT THEY ARE DOING WHEN THIS LOW-LEVEL PIECE

         22   THAT IS DUPLICATIVE OF A PIECE OF WINDOWS, THEY ARE NOT

         23   SELLING; THEY ARE GIVING IT AWAY.  WE DON'T KNOW WHAT

         24   THEY'RE SELLING AT THE TIME.  WE THINK MAYBE THEY'RE GOING

         25   TO DO A PLAYER PLUS, BECAUSE I'D COMMUNICATED TO DAVID THAT
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          1   LOOKED LIKE A BUSINESS MODEL FOR APPLE.

          2             I THINK ACTUALLY AT THIS POINT THEY'D JUST STARTED

          3   DOING THAT, BUT WE DON'T KNOW HOW SUCCESSFUL IT IS, THOUGH I

          4   HAVE TO SAY, I DON'T REMEMBER WHETHER I KNEW AT THIS POINT

          5   OR NOT.

          6   Q.  WELL, IN FACT, SIR, WHEN MR. COLE WRITES THAT "WE DON'T

          7   KNOW THE LEVERAGE POINTS," DOESN'T HE MEAN THAT WE DON'T

          8   KNOW THE POINTS OF LEVERAGE TO GET APPLE TO GIVE UP HAVING

          9   THE RUNTIME ON WINDOWS?

         10   A.  THAT'S NOT THE WAY I WOULD READ THIS.  WE DON'T KNOW

         11   WHAT'S IMPORTANT TO APPLE.  I MEAN, THAT'S WHAT THIS MEANS.

         12   AND IF THEY ARE GOING TO ADOPT OUR RUNTIME, THEY ARE GOING

         13   TO HAVE TO, AT SOME LEVEL, GIVE UP, MENTALLY AND

         14   EMOTIONALLY, ON BUILDING THIS DUPLICATIVE SET OF SERVICES,

         15   BECAUSE IT WOULDN'T MAKE SENSE FOR THEM TO BUILD A SERVICE

         16   ON TOP OF OURS THAT USES OUR SERVICES WHILE THEY ARE STILL

         17   BUILDING A SERVICE THAT IS -- YOU KNOW, THAT THEY VIEW AS

         18   THEIR HOPE FOR THEIR FUTURE, YOU KNOW, THAT SITS NEXT TO

         19   THIS PIECE OF WINDOWS.  THAT'S ODD.  AND THAT'S WHAT HE

         20   MEANS BY "GIVE UP."

         21             IT'S NOT LIKE WE NEED TO GET APPLE TO NEVER SHIP A

         22   PIECE OF CODE IN OUR OPERATING SYSTEM, WHICH IS THE WAY I

         23   THINK YOU WERE READING IT.

         24             MR. MALONE:  I HAVE NO MORE QUESTIONS.

         25             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  WE'LL TAKE A TEN-MINUTE
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          1   RECESS.

          2             (RECESS WAS TAKEN.)

          3             (AFTER RECESS.)

          4             MR. EDELMAN:  GOOD MORNING, YOUR HONOR.

          5             THE COURT:  GOOD MORNING, MR. EDELMAN.

          6             MR. EDELMAN:  I HAVE THE BRIEFEST OF REDIRECT

          7   EXAMINATIONS.  AND I AM PLEASED TO ALERT THE COURT WE HAVE

          8   SENT FOR MR. KEMPIN.

          9             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  VERY GOOD.

         10             MR. EDELMAN:  GOOD MORNING, MR. ENGSTROM.

         11             THE COURT: WE'LL TAKE HIM AFTER LUNCH, IN ANY

         12   EVENT.

         13             MR. EDELMAN:  AT YOUR WISH, YOUR HONOR.

         14             THE COURT:  BUT I AM GLAD TO KNOW HE IS ON THE

         15   WAY.

         16                      REDIRECT EXAMINATION

         17   BY MR. EDELMAN:

         18   Q.  MR. ENGSTROM, I WOULD LIKE TO SHOW YOU, WITH THE COURT'S

         19   PERMISSION, PARAGRAPH 97 OF THE WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY OF

         20   DR. TEVANIAN.  I ASK THAT A COPY BE PLACED BEFORE YOU.  IT'S

         21   ON PAGE 29, SIR.

         22   A.  YES, I HAVE IT.

         23             THE COURT:  I HAVE GOT IT.

         24   BY MR. EDELMAN:

         25   Q.  WOULD YOU READ THAT PARAGRAPH TO YOURSELF AND LET ME
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          1   KNOW WHEN YOU HAVE DONE THAT?

          2   A.  YES, I HAVE READ IT.

          3   Q.  DO SEE A REFERENCE THERE TO THE WORD "SABOTAGE."

          4   A.  YES, I DO.

          5   Q.  I WOULD NOW ASK THAT YOU BE SHOWN A SHORT EXCERPT FROM

          6   THE WRITTEN TRANSCRIPT OF THE DEPOSITION FROM SEPTEMBER 16,

          7   1998, OF MR. SCHAAF, BEGINNING ON PAGE 469 AND CARRYING TO

          8   PAGE 470.

          9   A.  THE WHOLE PAGE?

         10   Q.  I AM GOING TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION AND ACTUALLY READ TO

         11   YOU, AS YOU FOLLOW ALONG, BEGINNING ON LINE 10, THROUGH LINE

         12   5 ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE.  LET ME KNOW WHEN YOU HAVE OPENED

         13   TO THAT PAGE?

         14   A.  I HAVE GOT IT.

         15   Q.  AGAIN, IT'S 469.

         16             AND DO YOU SEE MR. SCHAAF IS ASKED THERE THE

         17   FOLLOWING QUESTIONS AND GIVES THE FOLLOWING ANSWERS?

         18             "QUESTION:  YOU TESTIFIED ABOUT SOME TECHNOLOGICAL

         19   INCOMPATIBILITIES WITH RESPECT TO QUICKTIME AND WINDOWS.  DO

         20   YOU RECALL THAT?

         21             "ANSWER:  YES.

         22             "DO YOU HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING AS TO WHETHER" --

         23   AND THEN THAT PORTION IS STRICKEN -- "WERE YOU SUGGESTING

         24   THAT MICROSOFT CREATED THOSE INCOMPATIBILITIES

         25   INTENTIONALLY?"
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          1             THERE IS AN OBJECTION FROM THE WITNESS' COUNSEL.

          2   THE WITNESS THEN ANSWERS, "I DON'T KNOW WHY THEY -- I DON'T

          3   KNOW WHY THEY PRODUCED THE -- I DON'T KNOW WHY THE

          4   INCOMPATIBILITIES ARE THERE."

          5             TURNING TO THE NEXT PAGE, THE WITNESS CONTINUES

          6   WITH THE ANSWER, "I DON'T KNOW THAT I EVER SUGGESTED THAT

          7   THEY DID IT INTENTIONALLY.

          8             "QUESTION:  ARE YOU SUGGESTING NOW THAT THEY DID

          9   IT INTENTIONALLY?

         10             "ANSWER:  I DON'T KNOW WHAT I THINK."

         11             DID I READ THAT CORRECTLY, SIR?

         12   A.  YES.

         13   Q.  NOW, MR. ENGSTROM, IN VIEW OF THAT DEPOSITION TESTIMONY,

         14   WHICH WAS TAKEN BEFORE DR. TEVANIAN'S WRITTEN DIRECT

         15   TESTIMONY WAS FILED IN THIS CASE, AND ALL THE EVIDENCE THAT

         16   YOU HAVE SUBMITTED AND ALL THE OTHER EVIDENCE THAT YOU ARE

         17   AWARE OF, WHAT IS YOUR REACTION TO DR. TEVANIAN'S CHARGE IN

         18   PARAGRAPH 97 OF HIS TESTIMONY THAT MICROSOFT HAS ENGAGED IN

         19   SABOTAGE?

         20   A.  I THINK HIS STATEMENT IS COMPLETELY UNFOUNDED.  AFTER WE

         21   GOT THE DATA, AS A RESULT OF THIS LITIGATION THAT WE COULD

         22   ACTUALLY INVESTIGATE, SINCE THEY NEVER PROVIDED US WITH THE

         23   TEST CASES PRIOR TO THAT, WE DID EXTENSIVE RESEARCH

         24   OURSELVES.  WE MANAGED TO BUILD A PIECE OF CODE THAT, FROM

         25   APPLE'S PERSPECTIVE, SHOULD HAVE BEEN IN THEIR INSTALLATION
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          1   PROGRAM TO MAKE IT WORK.  WE THEN WENT AND HAD IT VERIFIED

          2   BY THREE ORGANIZATIONS.  ONE OF THOSE ORGANIZATIONS

          3   REPLICATED OUR WORK ON THEIR OWN, ASKING US QUESTIONS AS

          4   THEY NEEDED IT.

          5             ANOTHER -- ONE OF THE LABS WAS JUST A TEST

          6   FACILITY.  SO THEY JUST VERIFIED OUR PATCH WORKED.  WE FOUND

          7   NO INDICATION AT ALL THAT WE HAD DONE ANYTHING

          8   INTENTIONAL -- IN FACT, THE MINDCRAFT REPORT SPECIFICALLY

          9   STATES THERE IS NO INDICATION OF MALICIOUS CONDUCT BY

         10   MICROSOFT AT ALL.

         11             FINALLY, IT'S -- AND I HESITATE TO USE THE WORD,

         12   BUT IT'S AMAZING TO ME THAT DR. TEVANIAN COULD COME IN HERE

         13   WITH THE DATA HE HAD AND MAKE A CLAIM OF SABOTAGE AGAINST

         14   MICROSOFT.

         15             WE BUILT THE ENABLE PLUG-IN FLAG TO ALLOW

         16   QUICKTIME, AS IT EXISTED AT THE TIME WE CREATED THE PLUG-IN,

         17   TO WORK.  WE SET THE FLAG FOR THEM SO IT WOULD WORK.  WE

         18   TRIED TO ANSWER THEIR QUESTIONS AT EVERY POINT.

         19             THE THING THAT IS NOT PROBABLY CLEAR HERE FROM

         20   USING THE WORD "SABOTAGE" IN THIS COURT CASE -- THOUGH I,

         21   AGAIN, CAN'T BELIEVE ANYONE WOULD DO THAT WITHOUT DATA -- IS

         22   THAT AT MICROSOFT, OUR COMPANY WOULD NEVER DO SOMETHING LIKE

         23   THAT.

         24             SO, YOU KNOW, THIS ALLEGATION REFLECTS -- WELL,

         25   WHILE IT REFLECTS ON MICROSOFT IN THIS COURT CASE, IT
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          1   REFLECTS ON ME PERSONALLY AND MY COLLEAGUES AT WORK.  I

          2   SPENT, YOU KNOW, A FAIR AMOUNT OF TIME TRYING TO EXPLAIN TO

          3   MY MANAGEMENT THAT I HAD NOT DONE SOMETHING, YOU KNOW, THIS

          4   EGREGIOUS, BECAUSE THEY, YOU KNOW, AT FIRST WENT, "MAN, WE

          5   CAN'T BELIEVE THIS HAPPENED."  AS REPORTS CAME IN, YOU KNOW,

          6   I BELIEVE I WAS VINDICATED, BUT THIS, YOU KNOW, COULD HAVE

          7   HAD -- IT ENDED UP IT DIDN'T, BECAUSE THE REPORTS WERE SO

          8   CLEAR -- SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS TO ME PERSONALLY AND, YOU KNOW,

          9   MY TEAM THAT WORKED ON THIS PROJECT.

         10             SO I HAVE GOT TO TELL YOU THAT, YOU KNOW,

         11   MICROSOFT DOESN'T DO THIS.  THIS WOULD -- THIS WAS JUST, YOU

         12   KNOW, OUT OF OUR SCOPE OF UNDERSTANDING IN THIS SPACE.

         13             MR. EDELMAN:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

         14             I HAVE NO FURTHER QUESTIONS.

         15             THE COURT:  MR. MALONE.

         16             MR. MALONE:  NO MORE QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.

         17             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT, MR. ENGSTROM.  YOU ARE

         18   EXCUSED.

         19             THE WITNESS:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

         20             (WITNESS LEAVING STAND.)

         21             THE COURT:  DO WE NEED TO START -- NO, WE CAN'T

         22   START AT 1:30.  I HAVE ANOTHER MATTER I HAVE TO START TAKE

         23   UP AT 1:30.

         24             WE'LL START AT 2:00 THIS AFTERNOON.

         25             MR. WARDEN:  YOU HAVE ANOTHER MATTER YOU SAY, YOUR
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          1   HONOR.

          2             THE COURT:  I HAVE A STATUS CONFERENCE IN A

          3   CRIMINAL CASE AT 1:30.  SO WE'LL START AT 2:00 O'CLOCK.

          4             MR. WARDEN:  OKAY.  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

          5             MR. KEMPIN, I SEE, HAS JUST ARRIVED.  HIS DIRECT

          6   EXAMINATION WILL BEGIN WITH A VIDEO.

          7             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

          8             MR. WARDEN: AND IF WE COULD SIT -- I UNDERSTAND

          9   YOUR HONOR NEEDS TO LEAVE AT A REASONABLE HOUR BECAUSE YOU

         10   HAVE ANOTHER MATTER AT 1:30.  IF WE COULD USE SOME TIME

         11   NOW --

         12             THE COURT:  RIGHT NOW?

         13             MR. WARDEN:  YES, THAT WOULD BE HELPFUL.

         14             THE COURT:  THAT IS PERFECTLY ALL RIGHT.

         15             MR. WARDEN:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

         16             MR. HOLLEY WILL CONDUCT THE EXAMINATION OF

         17   MR. KEMPIN.

         18             THE COURT:  VERY WELL.

         19             MR. HOLLEY:  THIS IS THE ONLY TIME, YOUR HONOR,

         20   THAT I WAS CAUGHT UNAWARE IN THIS CASE THAT THINGS WERE

         21   MOVING FASTER THAN I THOUGHT.

         22             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  DO YOU WANT TO CALL

         23   MR. KEMPIN?

         24             MR. HOLLEY:  YES, YOUR HONOR.  MICROSOFT CALLS AS

         25   ITS NEXT WITNESS JOACHIM KEMPIN.
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          1             (JOACHIM KEMPIN, DEFENDANT'S WITNESS, SWORN.)

          2                        DIRECT EXAMINATION

          3   BY MR. HOLLEY:

          4   Q.  GOOD MORNING, MR. KEMPIN.

          5   A.  GOOD MORNING.

          6   Q.  DO YOU HAVE A COPY OF YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY IN

          7   FRONT OF YOU, SIR?

          8   A.  I DO.

          9   Q.  HAVE YOU HAD AN OPPORTUNITY, MR. KEMPIN, TO REVIEW YOUR

         10   WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY IN THE LAST COUPLE OF DAYS?

         11   A.  I HAVE.

         12   Q.  AND BASED ON THAT REVIEW, ARE THERE ANY CORRECTIONS OR

         13   CHANGES YOU WISH TO MAKE TO YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY AT

         14   THIS TIME?

         15   A.  I HAVE NO CHANGES.

         16   Q.  MR. KEMPIN, DO YOU AFFIRM YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY

         17   TO BE TRUTHFUL, SIR?

         18   A.  I DO.

         19   Q.  MR. KEMPIN, YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY MAKES

         20   REFERENCE TO A NUMBER OF DEMONSTRATIONS CONTAINED IN A

         21   VIDEOTAPE THAT HAS BEEN MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION AS

         22   DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2163.  ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH THOSE

         23   DEMONSTRATIONS, MR. KEMPIN?

         24   A.  I AM FAMILIAR WITH THESE DEMONSTRATIONS.

         25   Q.  WERE YOU PRESENT, MR. KEMPIN, IN REDMOND WHEN THOSE
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          1   DEMONSTRATIONS WERE FILMED?

          2   A.  I WAS PRESENT.

          3   Q.  AND WERE THE DEMONSTRATIONS PREPARED AT YOUR INSTRUCTION

          4   AND UNDER YOUR GENERAL SUPERVISION?

          5   A.  YES.  THAT HAPPENED ON FEBRUARY 11 THIS MONTH.

          6   Q.  MR. KEMPIN, ARE YOU PREPARED TO BE CROSS-EXAMINED ABOUT

          7   THE CONTENTS OF THE DEMONSTRATIONS THAT APPEAR IN

          8   DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2163, SIR?

          9   A.  I AM.

         10             MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, I OFFER DEFENDANT'S

         11   EXHIBIT 2163.

         12             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

         13             THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2163 IS ADMITTED.

         14                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S

         15                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 2163 WAS

         16                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

         17             MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, BEFORE WE PLAY THE

         18   VIDEOTAPE, I WOULD LIKE TO OFFER THE FOUR EXHIBITS TO

         19   MR. KEMPIN'S WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY THAT ARE NOT ALREADY

         20   IN EVIDENCE.  THEY ARE, YOUR HONOR, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 813,

         21   WHICH IS A CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION FROM THE UNITED

         22   STATES COPYRIGHT OFFICE FOR WINDOWS 95; DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

         23   814, WHICH IS A CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION FROM THE UNITED

         24   STATES COPYRIGHT OFFICE FOR WINDOWS 98; DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

         25   1491, WHICH IS DATED FEBRUARY 27, 1998, AND IS THE OEM
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          1   PREINSTALLATION KIT OR OPK FOR WINDOWS 98; AND, FINALLY,

          2   YOUR HONOR, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2117, WHICH IS A SERIES OF

          3   SCREEN SHOTS PROVIDED TO MICROSOFT BY PACKARD BELL PRODUCT

          4   SUPPORT, SHOWING THE OLD PACKARD BELL NAVIGATOR SHELL, WHICH

          5   DESPITE THE SAME NAME, IS NOT A NETSCAPE PRODUCT, YOUR

          6   HONOR, BUT A PACKARD BELL PRODUCT.

          7             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

          8             MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, WE HAVE NO OBJECTION TO

          9   EXHIBIT 1491.

         10             WITH RESPECT TO EXHIBIT 2117, I SIMPLY HAVE A

         11   QUESTION AS TO WHETHER THIS IS A COMPLETE SET OF WHAT WAS

         12   GIVEN TO MICROSOFT BY PACKARD BELL.  IF IT IS A COMPLETE

         13   SET, AND WE HAVE THAT REPRESENTATION, I HAVE NO OBJECTION,

         14   BUT IF IT IS NOT A COMPLETE SET, I WOULD OBJECT TO IT ON THE

         15   GROUNDS THAT IT ISN'T COMPLETE.

         16             MR. HOLLEY:  MY UNDERSTANDING, YOUR HONOR, IS THAT

         17   IT IS A COMPLETE SET, BUT I AM HAPPY TO CONFIRM AT THE

         18   LUNCHEON RECESS THAT THAT IS INDEED TRUE.

         19             THE COURT:  I'LL RESERVE ON 2117.

         20             MR. BOIES:  WITH RESPECT TO EXHIBITS 813 AND 814,

         21   THESE WERE DOCUMENTS THAT WERE RESPONSIVE TO OUR DOCUMENT

         22   REQUEST, WHICH REQUESTED DOCUMENTS RELATING TO COPYRIGHTS.

         23   THEY WERE NOT PRODUCED IN RESPONSE TO OUR DOCUMENT REQUEST.

         24   AND INSOFAR AS I AM AWARE, THEY DO NOT BEAR DATES, AND WE

         25   HAVE ATTEMPTED TO SEE WHETHER THESE HAVE BEEN PRODUCED.  AND
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          1   WE WOULD OBJECT TO THEM ON THAT GROUND.

          2             THE COURT:  WELL, THEY ARE PUBLIC RECORDS, ARE

          3   THEY NOT?

          4             MR. BOIES:  YES, YOUR HONOR.  BUT THERE ARE A

          5   VARIETY OF COPYRIGHTS THAT MICROSOFT HAS.  WE TRIED THROUGH

          6   DISCOVERY TO GET THAT INFORMATION FROM THEM.  THEY DID NOT

          7   PRODUCE THAT INFORMATION.  WHAT THEY ARE NOW DOING IS

          8   PUTTING IN TWO SELECTED EXAMPLES.  AND WE THINK THAT SINCE

          9   THEY DID NOT PRODUCE THE DOCUMENTS THAT WERE RESPONSIVE TO

         10   THE DOCUMENT REQUEST, THEY SHOULD NOT BE ABLE AT THIS POINT

         11   TO COME IN WITH TWO SPECIFIC EXAMPLES.

         12             MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, THESE DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN

         13   IN THE POSSESSION OF THE GOVERNMENT SINCE OCTOBER OF 1998

         14   WHEN THEY WERE LISTED ON MICROSOFT'S TRIAL EXHIBITS.  SO

         15   THERE IS NO SECRET ABOUT THEM.  AND AS YOUR HONOR POINTS

         16   OUT, THEY ARE RECORDS THAT ANYONE CAN OBTAIN BY GOING TO THE

         17   UNITED STATES COPYRIGHT OFFICE IN THE CITY OF

         18   WASHINGTON, D. C.

         19             AND I AM NOT CLEAR WHAT MR. BOIES IS SAYING ABOUT

         20   OUR SUPPOSED FAILURE TO PRODUCE DOCUMENTS RESPONSIVE TO ANY

         21   PARTICULAR REQUEST.  I AM NOT AWARE OF ANY SUCH FAILURE,

         22   YOUR HONOR.  WE HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL OF THE LEGITIMATE

         23   DISCOVERY REQUESTS SUBMITTED TO US.

         24             MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, THE POINT IS NOT THAT WE

         25   HAVEN'T HAD THESE SINCE OCTOBER.  THE POINT IS THAT DURING
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          1   THE DISCOVERY, WE ASKED FOR THEIR COPYRIGHTED MATERIALS

          2   RELATED TO THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS CASE.  THOSE

          3   COPYRIGHTED MATERIALS WERE NOT PRODUCED.

          4             THESE ARE AUTHENTIC DOCUMENTS.  I AM NOT OBJECTING

          5   TO THEM ON THE GROUNDS THAT THEY ARE NOT AUTHENTIC.  WHAT I

          6   AM SAYING IS HAVING FAILED TO PROVIDE US WITH DOCUMENTS

          7   RELATED TO THE SUBJECT MATTER DURING DISCOVERY, THEY CAN'T

          8   COME IN FROM THE COPYRIGHT OFFICE, OR SOMEPLACE ELSE, AND

          9   PUT IN DOCUMENTS THAT WERE IN THEIR FILES, BUT THAT WERE

         10   SELECTIVELY HELD AND PRODUCED AFTER THE CLOSE OF DISCOVERY.

         11             THE COURT:  WELL, ASSUMING THEY SHOULD HAVE BEEN

         12   PRODUCED DURING THE COURSE OF DISCOVERY AND WERE NOT -- AND

         13   AT THE MOMENT, WE'RE UNCLEAR ON THAT MATTER -- THAT MIGHT

         14   ENTITLE YOU TO SANCTIONS, BUT I DON'T SEE ANY PREJUDICE TO

         15   THE PLAINTIFFS IN VIEW OF THE FACT THAT THE DOCUMENTS HAVE

         16   BEEN IN YOUR CUSTODY AT LEAST SINCE THE BEGINNING OF THIS

         17   TRIAL.

         18             MR. BOIES:  THESE TWO DOCUMENTS?

         19             THE COURT:  YES, SIR.

         20             MR. BOIES:  THAT'S CORRECT, YOUR HONOR.

         21             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  WELL, THE OBJECTION IS

         22   OVERRULED THEN.  813 AND 814 ARE ADMITTED.

         23                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S

         24                                   EXHIBITS NUMBERS 813 AND 814

         25                                   WERE RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)
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          1             MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, AT THIS TIME I WOULD LIKE

          2   TO PLAY DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2163.  IN VIEW, YOUR HONOR,

          3   OF --

          4             THE COURT:  LET ME ALSO ADMIT 1491, WHILE WE'RE AT

          5   IT, TOO.

          6             MR. HOLLEY:  YES, YOUR HONOR.  THANK YOU.

          7                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S

          8                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 1491 WAS

          9                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)

         10             THE COURT:  AND I AM GOING TO RESERVE ON 2117.

         11   NOW, YOU WANT TO PLAY 2163?

         12             MR. HOLLEY:  YES.

         13             AND, YOUR HONOR, A SUGGESTION, IN VIEW OF THE TIME

         14   CONSTRAINTS THAT WE'RE CURRENTLY OPERATING UNDER.  THIS TAPE

         15   RUNS APPROXIMATELY ONE HOUR AND TWENTY MINUTES.  I AM

         16   INTERESTING IN PARING THAT TIME DOWN, WITH THE COURT'S

         17   PERMISSION, BY PLAYING THE FIRST SEGMENT AND A PORTION OF

         18   THE SECOND SEGMENT, WHICH IS FOUR DIFFERENT OEM MACHINES.

         19             I THINK IF WE COULD PLAY THE FIRST OF THOSE FOUR,

         20   YOUR HONOR, AND THEN SKIP TO THE LAST SECTION OF THE TAPE,

         21   THAT WOULD SAVE US A SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNT OF TIME, YOUR HONOR.

         22   IF YOUR HONOR WOULD PREFER TO PLAY THE ENTIRE TAPE, I AM

         23   CERTAINLY HAPPY TO DO THAT.

         24             MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I HAVE ALREADY ADVISED

         25   COUNSEL THAT I HAVE NO OBJECTION.  THEY ARE GOING TO OFFER
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          1   THE ENTIRE TAPE IN EVIDENCE.

          2             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

          3             MR. BOIES:  AND I HAVE NO OBJECTION TO THEM

          4   PLAYING SELECTED PORTIONS WITH THE WITNESS.

          5             THE COURT:  SURE.  IT'S HIS CASE.

          6             YOU CAN PLAY WHATEVER YOU WANT.

          7             MR. HOLLEY:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

          8             THE COURT:  I WANT TO STOP AT 12:15, HOWEVER.

          9             MR. HOLLEY:  YES, YOUR HONOR.  WE'LL START, AND I

         10   MAY AT A COUPLE OF POINTS STAND UP AND EXPLAIN WHAT WE'RE

         11   NOT GOING TO PLAY IN REALTIME IN THE COURTROOM.

         12             THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

         13             THE COURT:  DO I APPREHEND THAT PART OF IT IS IN

         14   SPANISH?

         15             MR. HOLLEY:  THAT WOULD BE NEWS TO ME, YOUR HONOR.

         16             THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

         17             (PLAYING VIDEOTAPE.)

         18             MR. FESTER:  HI.  I AM DAVE FESTER.  I AM A GROUP

         19   PRODUCT MANAGER IN THE PERSONAL AND BUSINESS SYSTEMS GROUP

         20   AT MICROSOFT.

         21             IN THIS DEMONSTRATION, I WILL DESCRIBE AND SHOW

         22   THE MANY WAYS THAT COMPUTER MAKERS, OR OEM'S, CAN CUSTOMIZE

         23   CERTAIN ASPECTS OF WINDOWS 98.

         24             UNDER THE WINDOWS 98 LICENSE AGREEMENT, OEM'S CAN

         25   CUSTOMIZE NOT ONLY MANY ASPECTS OF THE WINDOWS 98 USER
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          1   INTERFACE, BUT ALSO THE FIRST BOOT OF THE COMPUTER.

          2             THE FIRST BOOT IS THE FIRST TIME A USER TURNS ON

          3   THE COMPUTER AFTER IT HAS BEEN PURCHASED, UNPACKED AND

          4   PLUGGED IN.

          5             I WILL DEMONSTRATE SEVERAL OEM COMPUTER SYSTEMS,

          6   SHOW YOU HOW THOSE SYSTEMS HAVE BEEN CUSTOMIZED AND

          7   DEMONSTRATE THE FEATURES OF WINDOWS 98 THAT ARE PROTECTED

          8   AGAINST OEM DELETION OR MODIFICATION DURING THE FIRST BOOT

          9   IN ORDER TO PRESERVE THE WINDOWS EXPERIENCE FOR END USERS.

         10             BEFORE WE LOOK AT THE OEM COMPUTERS, IT'S FIRST

         11   NECESSARY TO HAVE A BASIC UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT A PERSONAL

         12   COMPUTER SYSTEM DOES THE FIRST TIME IT IS TURNED ON.

         13             WHEN THE POWER IS FIRST TURNED ON, THE

         14   MICROPROCESSOR AND COMPONENTS OF THE COMPUTER COME TO LIFE,

         15   FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS CODED ON A INTERNAL CHIP.  THESE

         16   INSTRUCTIONS, WHICH ARE PROVIDED BY THE CHIP MANUFACTURER,

         17   OR THE OEM, ARE REFERRED TO AS THE BIOS.

         18             WHILE THE BIOS INSTRUCTIONS ARE BEING FOLLOWED,

         19   THE OEM IS FREE TO DO WHATEVER IT WANTS WITH THE COMPUTER

         20   SYSTEMS DISPLAY.  YOU WILL SEE THAT NEARLY ALL OF THE OEM'S

         21   TAKE ADVANTAGE OF THIS TIME TO DISPLAY BRAND INFORMATION OR

         22   OTHER MESSAGES TO THE USER.

         23             WINDOWS HAS NOT YET BEGUN TO LOAD, SO THE OEM

         24   LICENSE AGREEMENT DOES NOT APPLY TO THIS ACTIVITY.  ONCE THE

         25   BIOS STARTUP IS COMPLETE, WINDOWS WILL BEGIN TO BOOT AND THE
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          1   OEM LICENSE TERMS COME INTO EFFECT.  DURING THIS TIME, THE

          2   WINDOWS SPLASH SCREEN IS DISPLAYED ON THE MONITOR AND OEM'S

          3   AT THIS POINT HAVE THE OPTION OF BRANDING THE SPLASH SCREEN,

          4   AS YOU CAN SEE HERE ON THE SCREEN.

          5             I WILL ALSO DEMONSTRATE THIS LATER WHEN WE BOOT

          6   THE NEW OEM PERSONAL COMPUTERS.

          7             SINCE THIS IS THE FIRST BOOT, THE USER IS

          8   SOMETIMES ASKED SOME ONE-TIME CONFIGURATION AND LICENSE

          9   QUESTIONS.  OEM'S HAVE EXTENSIVE BRANDING AND INFORMATION

         10   FLEXIBILITY WHILE WINDOWS IS BOOTING, AS YOU WILL SEE.

         11             FINALLY, THE FIRST-BOOT PROCESS IS COMPLETE AND

         12   THE WINDOWS 98 DESKTOP IS DISPLAYED.

         13             I WILL DEMONSTRATE THE GREAT DEAL OF CUSTOMIZATION

         14   AVAILABLE TO OEM'S, EVEN ON THE FIRST-BOOT DESKTOP,

         15   INCLUDING HOW OEM'S CAN ENCOURAGE USERS TO COMPLETE

         16   OEM-SPECIFIC INSTALLATIONS THAT REQUIRE A USER TO CLICK ON

         17   AN ICON, AFTER WHICH THE OEM IS FREE TO DISPLAY WHATEVER IT

         18   WISHES, AND CAN EVEN REPLACE THE WINDOWS 98 DESKTOP

         19   ENTIRELY.

         20             BEFORE WE LOOK AT ANY ACTUAL OEM SYSTEMS, LET'S

         21   FIRST LOOK AT THE FIRST BOOT OF A PLAIN VANILLA WINDOWS 98

         22   COMPUTER.  COMPARING THIS SYSTEM TO THE OEM COMPUTERS WILL

         23   PUT INTO PERSPECTIVE THE AMOUNT OF CUSTOMIZATION AND

         24   MODIFICATION EACH OEM DOES ON ITS COMPUTERS.

         25             OUR PLAIN VANILLA COMPUTER DEMONSTRATES WHAT THE
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          1   FIRST BOOT WOULD LOOK LIKE IF AN OEM PREINSTALLED WINDOWS 98

          2   IN A PERSONAL COMPUTER, AS LICENSED FROM MICROSOFT, WITHOUT

          3   ADDING ANY OEM CUSTOMIZATION AND WITHOUT INSTALLING ANY

          4   THIRD-PARTY SOFTWARE.

          5             IN CONFIGURING WINDOWS 98 FOR THIS COMPUTER, WE

          6   HAVE ACCEPTED ALL DEFAULTS, EXCEPT WE TURNED OFF THE NEW

          7   PRINTER OPTION SINCE WE HAVE NO PRINTER CONNECTED TO THIS

          8   SYSTEM, AND WE HAVE SET THE TIME ZONE.

          9             ALSO, FOR COMPLETENESS, WE HAVE TURNED THE ACTIVE

         10   CHANNEL BAR ON BY DEFAULT, EVEN THOUGH MOST OEM'S CHOOSE TO

         11   TURN IT OFF BY DEFAULT.

         12             AS YOU SEE HERE, I MUST FIRST ENTER IN MY USER

         13   NAME AND COMPANY.  I WILL ACCEPT THE LICENSE AGREEMENT AND

         14   ENTER IN MY PRODUCT I.D.  AND ONCE DONE, I WILL CLICK

         15   "FINISH."

         16             I AM JUST ENTERING MY USER NAME.  WINDOWS 98 IS

         17   NOW SETTING UP THE DEFAULT CHANNEL SETUP ON THIS COMPUTER.

         18   AND THIS, AS YOU SEE HERE, IS THE WINDOWS 98 WELCOME SCREEN.

         19             SO I WILL CLOSE THIS NOW.  AND LET'S LOOK MORE

         20   CLOSELY AT THE STANDARD WINDOWS 98 DESKTOP.  THIS, AS YOU

         21   CAN SEE HERE, IS THE WINDOWS 98 ACTIVE DESKTOP.

         22             AS YOU WILL SEE, OEM'S CAN CUSTOMIZE THIS DESKTOP

         23   EXTENSIVELY.  ON THE ACTIVE DESKTOP IS THE CHANNEL BAR.  AS

         24   YOU WILL SEE, OEM'S CAN ALSO CUSTOMIZE THE CHANNEL BAR WITH

         25   THEIR OWN CONTENT, OR THEY CAN TURN IT OFF BY DEFAULT.  I
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          1   WILL GO AHEAD AND TURN IT OFF.

          2             DOWN HERE IS THE QUICK LAUNCH BAR THAT ALLOWS

          3   ONE-CLICK STARTUP OF ANY PROGRAMS THAT ARE PLACED HERE.

          4   OEM'S CAN ADD PROGRAM ICONS TO THE QUICK LAUNCH BAR AS WELL.

          5             THIS IS THE START MENU.  INCLUDED IN THE START

          6   MENU IS A LIST OF PROGRAMS INSTALLED ON THE COMPUTER.  OEM'S

          7   CAN ADD ANY SOFTWARE THEY WANT TO THE COMPUTER AND ADD

          8   PROGRAM ICONS TO THIS LIST AS WELL.

          9             OEM'S CAN ALSO ADD ICONS HERE ABOVE THE LINE IN

         10   THE START MENU.  ICONS ADDED HERE HAVE PROMINENCE OVER OTHER

         11   ICONS IN THE START MENU.

         12             THIS PROVIDES A BRIEF OVERVIEW OF SOME OF THE

         13   THINGS OEM'S CAN DO TO CUSTOMIZE THEIR SYSTEMS.

         14             LET'S LOOK AT SEVERAL OEM COMPUTER SYSTEMS THAT WE

         15   HAVE PURCHASED BRAND NEW AT RETAIL STORES TO GIVE YOU A FEEL

         16   FOR THE DEGREE OF BRANDING AND CUSTOMIZATION THAT IS BEING

         17   DONE TODAY BY SOME OF THE TOP P.C. MAKERS.

         18             I'LL DEMONSTRATE EACH OF THESE COMPUTERS, JUST AS

         19   WE UNPACKED THEM OUT OF THE BOX.  I WILL SHOW THE COMPLETE

         20   FIRST BOOT OF EACH SYSTEM WITHOUT EDITS.  ONCE EACH SYSTEM

         21   HAS BOOTED TO THE WINDOWS 98 DESKTOP, I WILL SHOW SOME OF

         22   THE FEATURES OF EACH OEM SYSTEM.

         23             THIS PORTION OF EACH DEMONSTRATION WILL BE DONE

         24   USING THE SAME COMPUTER USED TO DEMONSTRATE THE FIRST BOOT,

         25   WITHOUT ANY CHANGE OR MODIFICATION, BUT SOME SHORT SEGMENTS
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          1   MAY HAVE BEEN EDITED TO SAVE TIME.

          2             THIS IS A DEMONSTRATION OF THE SONY VOIA DIGITAL

          3   STUDIO E 302 DS.  I WILL NOW BOOT THIS MACHINE FOR THE FIRST

          4   TIME AND WALK YOU THROUGH THE FIRST BOOT PROCESS.

          5             YOU CAN SEE SONY'S FULL-SCREEN BRANDING OF THE

          6   BIOS.  IN FACT, WE ENCOURAGE OEM'S TO PUT THEIR BRAND IN THE

          7   BIOS FOR BETTER END USER EXPERIENCE.

          8             NOW YOU SEE THE WINDOWS 98 BOOT SPLASH SCREEN,

          9   WHICH STARTS THE FIRST BOOT PROCESS FOR WINDOWS 98.  NOW

         10   WE'RE LOADED, AND WE'RE NOW PRESENTED WITH THE WINDOWS 98

         11   SETUP WIZARD.  SO I WILL GO AHEAD AND ENTER IN MY USER

         12   INFORMATION, ACCEPT THE LICENSE AGREEMENT, AND ENTER IN THE

         13   PRODUCT KEY.

         14             ONCE I AM DONE, I WILL CLICK "NEXT."  THEN I WILL

         15   CLICK "FINISH" TO START WINDOWS 98.  NOTICE WHILE I AM

         16   BOOTING THAT WE IMMEDIATELY SEE THE VOIA CUSTOM WALLPAPER,

         17   AS YOU CAN SEE HERE.  WE'LL COME BACK TO THAT IN A MOMENT.

         18   I AM GOING TO ASK FOR THE USER NAME.  I WILL GO AHEAD AND

         19   CLICK "OKAY."

         20             NOW WE'RE OUT TO WINDOWS 98 HARDWARE DETECTION

         21   WIZARD.  WE'LL LOOK FOR ANY DEVICES THAT ARE IMMEDIATELY

         22   ATTACHED TO THIS COMPUTER.  HERE IT FOUND THE NEC MULTISYNC

         23   MONITOR.

         24             WHILE THAT'S CONTINUING, YOU WILL NOTICE THAT YOU

         25   SEE THE VOIA FULL-SCREEN BITMAP THAT VOIA -- THAT SONY HAS
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          1   CHOSEN TO CUSTOMIZE FOR THEIR END USERS.

          2             NOW WE SEE THE WINDOWS 98 SETUP PROGRAM

          3   CONTINUING, AND WE'RE SHOWN THE DATE AND TIME PROPERTIES.  I

          4   WILL GO AHEAD AND ACCEPT THE DEFAULTS.  NOW IT RUNS THROUGH

          5   THE SYSTEM CONFIGURATION UPDATING THE SYSTEM SETTINGS ON THE

          6   COMPUTER.

          7             ONCE THAT'S DONE, IT SETS UP THE PERSONALIZED

          8   SETTINGS FOR THE DEFAULT CHANNEL SETUP.  AND WE'RE ALMOST

          9   DONE.  WE'RE NOW PRESENTED WITH THE "WELCOME TO WINDOWS 98"

         10   SCREEN.  AND THE FIRST BOOT PROCESS IS COMPLETE.

         11             I WILL GO AHEAD AND CLOSE THE "WELCOME TO WINDOWS

         12   98."  I WILL TAKE A LOOK AT THE CUSTOMIZATION THAT SONY HAS

         13   DONE TO THIS COMPUTER.

         14             AS I SAID BEFORE, YOU NOTICE THAT YOU SEE THE VOIA

         15   BITMAP HERE THAT SHOWS THE CUSTOMIZATION THAT SONY HAS DONE

         16   DIRECTLY TO THE DESKTOP.

         17             YOU WILL ALSO NOTICE SOME ADDITIONAL ICONS THAT

         18   THEY HAVE ADDED TO THE DESKTOP.  FOR EXAMPLE, THEY HAVE

         19   ADDED AOL INTERNET FREE TRIAL.  THEY HAVE ADDED THE EASY

         20   INTERNET ACCESS.  WE'LL COME BACK AND RUN THAT IN A FEW

         21   MOMENTS.  THEY HAVE ADDED THE SONY VOIA REGISTRATION, SO YOU

         22   CAN EASILY REGISTER THE COMPUTER.  AND THEY HAVE ADDED AN

         23   ICON TO A PROGRAM CALLED VOIA SPACE II.

         24             DOWN BELOW IN THE QUICKLAUNCH BAR, YOU WILL NOTICE

         25   THAT THEY HAVE ADDED AN ICON AND INSERTED THEM THERE, CALLED
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          1   THE "VOIA SPACE II."  SO IT'S ONE-CLICK ACCESS TO THAT

          2   PARTICULAR PROGRAM.

          3             TAKE A LOOK AT THE START MENU.  CLICK ON THE START

          4   BUTTON.  MOVE UP TO PROGRAMS.  AND NOTICE THAT THEY HAVE

          5   ADDED A NUMBER OF THIRD-PARTY PROGRAMS TO THE START MENU.

          6   IN PARTICULAR, THEY HAVE ADDED AMERICA ONLINE, THEY HAVE

          7   ADDED NETSCAPE COMMUNICATOR, AND YOU WILL ALSO NOTICE A

          8   BROWSER, NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR.

          9             A LITTLE BIT MORE.  IF YOU LOOK ABOVE THE LINE,

         10   SONY HAS ADDED IN A PROMINENT WAY A NUMBER OF PROGRAM GROUPS

         11   WITH A NUMBER OF PROGRAMS THAT THEY THINK THE USERS MIGHT

         12   NEED.  YOU WILL ALSO NOTICE IN THE ONLINE CENTER, AGAIN,

         13   THEY HAVE PUT THE ICON FOR AMERICA ONLINE, INTERNET

         14   EXPLORER, AND NETSCAPE COMMUNICATOR, TO NAME A FEW.

         15             LET'S NOW GO TO "MY COMPUTER" AND TAKE A LOOK AT

         16   THE PROPERTIES.  NOTICE SONY HAS CUSTOMIZED THIS WITH THAT

         17   BITMAP AND ALSO INCLUDED SUPPORT INFORMATION SO THAT AN END

         18   USER  CAN EASILY FIND OUT HOW TO GET TECHNICAL SUPPORT FROM

         19   SONY ELECTRONICS.

         20             I WILL GO AHEAD AND CLICK "OKAY."  AT THIS POINT,

         21   AS AN END-USER, I'D LIKE TO SET UP INTERNET ACCESS.  SO I

         22   WILL GO OVER AND LAUNCH THE EASY INTERNET ACCESS ICON.

         23             (END OF PLAYING VIDEOTAPE.)

         24             MR. HOLLEY:  YOUR HONOR, THIS PROCESS TAKES

         25   APPROXIMATELY FIVE OR SIX MINUTES.  AND IN VIEW OF THE
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          1   COURT'S DESIRE TO STOP AT 12:15, I THINK WE HAD BETTER PICK

          2   THIS UP AFTER LUNCH.

          3             THE COURT: FINE.

          4             MR. HOLLEY:  OKAY.

          5             THE COURT: THAT'S FINE.  ALL RIGHT.  2:00.

          6             (WHEREUPON, AT 12:13 P.M., THE ABOVE-ENTITLED

          7   MATTER WAS RECESSED FOR LUNCH.)

          8                     CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

          9        THIS RECORD IS CERTIFIED BY THE UNDERSIGNED REPORTER TO

         10   BE THE OFFICIAL TRANSCRIPT OF THE PROCEEDINGS INDICATED.
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